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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I would like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5  Council members joining me this morning are Council

          6  Member Simcha Felder, Larry Seabrook, Kendall

          7  Stewart, Melinda Katz and Al Vann. Other members

          8  will be joining us during the hearing.

          9                 We have a unique situation this

         10  morning because due to some emergency action that is

         11  being requested by the State Legislature, at some

         12  point we will have to recess the meeting and go next

         13  door to have a full Stated Meeting. We are being

         14  asked by the State Legislature to do a Home Rule

         15  Message. That is supposed to happen at 10:00. We

         16  don't anticipate it happening at 10:00. But what we

         17  will do is we will try and handle as many items as

         18  we can before we have to recess. And then after the

         19  Stated Meeting, which should be very, very short,

         20  once it actually gets started, we will come back

         21  here for the rest of the items.

         22                 I see we're also joined by Council

         23  Member Mike McMahon.

         24                 What I'll try and do is get through

         25  some of the items, as many of the items that are
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          2  without controversy as quickly as possible so as

          3  many people can leave.

          4                 We'll switch around the schedule, so

          5  let me first do Land Use No. 606, Bouley Bakery,

          6  20075443 TCM, an application by the bakery for

          7  consent to maintain and operate an unenclosed

          8  sidewalk cafe located at 130 West Broadway. And

          9  obviously the applicant is sitting at the table now.

         10  Please introduce yourself.

         11                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members

         12  of the Committee. My name is Robert Bookman from the

         13  law firm of Pesesky and Bookman (phonetic). With me

         14  is the world famous David Bouley, who is the

         15  principal of the applicant. Mr. Bouley, one of the

         16  treasures of New York City, that we stole him from

         17  France many years ago, he has been a restaurant

         18  operator in this neighborhood for 20 years now. As

         19  multiple establishments now, we are very pleased

         20  that we were able to work out whatever difficulties

         21  there were with Councilman Gerson and his excellent

         22  staff. We have made the changes that they've

         23  requested, and I understand they sent you a letter

         24  which contains all of those proposed changes that we

         25  will -- most of which has already been adopted and
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          2  we're finishing up the rest.

          3                 Everything has been completed, I'm

          4  told.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This application

          6  lies within Council Member Alan Gerson's district.

          7  He is in support of the application. I'm just seeing

          8  the letter now from Alan, but I haven't seen your

          9  letter.

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, it's Alan's letter

         11  I'm saying.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm sorry?

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: I don't have a letter.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Oh, you don't

         15  have a letter?

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, I'm saying I hope

         17  you have Alan's letter.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes, we have Alan

         19  Gerson's letter.

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Staff has brought

         22  to my attention about the two umbrellas illegally

         23  face the sidewalk, 14 pumpkins on the City sidewalk,

         24  illegal A-Frame?

         25                 MR. BOOKMAN: Removed. The umbrella is
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          2  now a self-standing umbrella, as is requested. The

          3  two rows have been firmed up. The excess planters

          4  have been removed. There are now just planters on

          5  the two sides, defining the cafe on the sides. The

          6  height of those planters have been reduced. The

          7  benches on the other side of the street that there

          8  is no cafe have been removed.

          9                 I am in the process of applying to

         10  DOT for bench permits, because the neighborhood

         11  really likes those benches. As soon as we get the

         12  bench permits approved, those benches will go back.

         13  And the other planters in the meantime have been

         14  either removed or pushed against the wall, you know,

         15  on the side where there is no cafe.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Staff is telling

         17  me you're going to have to amend your plan in

         18  reference to the things we're just talking about? Do

         19  you know about this?

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: No, because everything

         21  that we were asked to remove wasn't on our plan, so

         22  we're now --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, what I

         24  think would be very helpful is a letter from you,

         25  not just from the Council member, but from you
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          2  stating that you're taking all these actions.

          3                 MR. BOOKMAN: Not a problem.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

          5  Committee members?

          6                 Seeing no questions, thank you.

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I do not have a

          9  speaker list from anybody on this item; is that

         10  correct? Nobody is here? Good. We will close the

         11  public hearing on this item. And Robert, please get

         12  us that letter before the Land Use Committee

         13  meeting. Thank you.

         14                 Next we will skip to Land Use No.

         15  607, Bedford Stuyvesant rezoning. N 070448 ZRY.

         16  Which also includes C070447 ZMK, which also includes

         17  a Citywide amendment for the rezoning. And then

         18  immediately after this we'll do the Forest Hills

         19  rezoning.

         20                 The Bedford Stuyvesant South rezoning

         21  is in, most of it is in Council Member Al Vann's

         22  district. There is a small portion in Council Member

         23  Mealy's district, and both Council Members are in

         24  favor of the application.

         25                 MR. VON ENGEL: Good morning, Council
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          2  members, Councilman Avella, Chair Avella, Council

          3  Member Vann, Council Member Katz and everybody else.

          4  My name is Winston Von Engel. I'm the Deputy

          5  Director of the Brooklyn Office of the Department of

          6  City Planning. I'm joined to my right by Stephanie

          7  Becker, who is the Project Planner for the Bedford

          8  Stuyvesant South rezoning.

          9                 And we are extremely proud to be here

         10  before you this morning to present you with the

         11  Bedford Stuyvesant South Rezoning. It is the

         12  culmination of a multi-year effort, a cooperative

         13  effort, together with Council Member Vann, and

         14  Community Board 3, as well as other elected

         15  officials, including Council Member Mealy, and other

         16  community leaders to bring the zoning in Bedford

         17  Stuyvesant to the present day to protect the

         18  midblocks from out of character development and to

         19  provide for incentives for affordable housing and

         20  some additional density on the transit rich Fulton

         21  Street corridor.

         22                 You have before you a handout that

         23  goes through the attributes of the rezoning.

         24                 To my left is a board that describes

         25  the current zoning, which is predominantly R 6,
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          2  which is a district that allows for apartment

          3  buildings at a height of 13 stories, as well as R5,

          4  which is a district, a zoning district that allows

          5  for row houses, town houses with large front yards

          6  with parking pads on the front.

          7                 This zoning has essentially not

          8  changed since the 1960s.

          9                 Following up on the community board's

         10  review of a prior action, the Department of City

         11  Planning worked closely and cooperatively with

         12  Council Member Vann and Community Board 3, and I

         13  want to specifically acknowledge the current chair

         14  Brenda Fryson (phonetic) and the prior chair Bee

         15  Jones, as well as members of the Community Board's

         16  Land Use Committee, Doris Pinn and Wilma Maynard, as

         17  real partners and supporters of this rezoning

         18  effort.

         19                 The goal here in Bedford Stuyvesant

         20  was to protect the mid-blocks from out-of-character

         21  development.

         22                 As you know, Bedford Stuyvesant is

         23  seeing a resurgence in new investment in housing.

         24  Often this housing is out of character with the

         25  beautiful brownstone character of the neighborhood.
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          2  It results in large front yards that are not typical

          3  of the brownstones that are there, as well as

          4  parking pads that disrupt the continuity of the

          5  brownstone blocks.

          6                 Along Fulton Street we have two

          7  subway lines that serve this community, and we have

          8  retail and we have opportunities for new housing

          9  development. There are several City-owned sites and

         10  sites that are under-built that could sustain

         11  additional development and affordable housing.

         12                 So, the proposed zoning essentially

         13  protects the mid-blocks of Bedford Stuyvesant

         14  through R6B and R6A zoning districts. The R6B zoning

         15  districts are shown in the light orange throughout

         16  the area, as well as the R6A which is shown in the

         17  darker orange, mainly along the avenues and along

         18  Gates Avenue, where there are currently apartment

         19  buildings.

         20                 Along Fulton Street, which is the

         21  East/West Thoroughfare, the main retail strip of

         22  Bedford Stuyvesant, we created a brand new zoning

         23  district, R7D and C45D. This is a zoning district

         24  that allows for a density of up to 4.2 and with

         25  affordable housing as an incentive, and a density of
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          2  up to 5.6 and ten stories in total height.

          3                 Furthermore, we require that ground

          4  floor uses along the retail corridor of Fulton

          5  Street cannot be residential. So that will guarantee

          6  that Fulton Street will remain an active street.

          7                 The R7D and C45D districts are then

          8  mapped mostly along Fulton Street. Other areas along

          9  Fulton Street are mapped to reflect the existing

         10  uses that we're prepared to protect, such as R6B and

         11  R6A where townhouses are predominant.

         12                 We are making one more change which

         13  is a small mixed use district, an area currently

         14  zoned for manufacturing only, along Atlantic Avenue.

         15  We are pairing that manufacturing district with an

         16  R7D district to allow for both the manufacturing

         17  uses or warehouse uses that are there today, as well

         18  as to allow for future growth with housing and

         19  affordable housing.

         20                 If you have any questions, we'd be

         21  happy to answer them.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member Al

         23  Vann.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes, thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 I'll be really brief. First of all,

          3  I'd like to commend Mr. Von Engel, and Stephanie,

          4  representing City Planning, Brooklyn City Planning.

          5                 You've been working with our

          6  community now, it seems like, around three years in

          7  total, and it has been, I should say labor of love.

          8  We've had our disagreements, but we've all been

          9  focused on doing the right thing by the community.

         10                 I'd like to commend you and your

         11  people for your professionalism and your

         12  sensitivity, as we have developed this final

         13  rezoning plan, as we come to culmination.

         14                 Second only to my accolades and

         15  commendations for the leadership in my community, I

         16  cannot say enough for Community Board 3, its

         17  Chairperson Brenda Fryson you mentioned, as well as

         18  Doris Pinn, who is here who we will hear from

         19  shortly, providing great leadership. You'll probably

         20  want to hire her. She is very astute, very

         21  knowledgeable about this rezoning and all of the

         22  language that you guys use, we're right with you

         23  because Doris has kept up with it and kept us

         24  abreast.

         25                 I also must commend the Coalition for
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          2  the Improvement of the Bed Stuy, co-chaired by Mr.

          3  Colvin Grannum, who also is the President of Bed

          4  Stuy Restoration. Representatives of all the local

          5  community developers have come together and not only

          6  are they concerned about the agendas representing

          7  their respective organizations, but they also have

          8  community consciousness. And I cannot be more elated

          9  at the working relationship between the community

         10  board and our local developers, which is why we have

         11  I think an outstanding rezoning plan, one that we

         12  all feel very good about, looking after the needs of

         13  our housing stock, and looking after trying to

         14  provide for the increase in population, try to

         15  maintain a vitality in our retail strips.

         16                 So, again, I only have commendation

         17  for all involved, and we look forward as the final

         18  culmination when we will have this rezoning, not

         19  only because it's a good rezoning, but because the

         20  north needs to be rezoned immediately. So, as soon

         21  as we can expeditiously complete this, we want to

         22  begin right away to complete the North Bed Stuy

         23  rezoning.

         24                 Thank you, and thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Any

          3  questions from my colleagues?

          4                 Thank you. We do have several

          5  speakers inside, I will take them next.

          6                 As was mentioned, Ms. Pinn is here

          7  from Community Board 3, Colvin Grannum from the

          8  Bedford Stuy, I guess it's Restoration Corporation,

          9  and Ms. Perry. If those speakers would come up.

         10                 MS. PINN: Good morning, Mr. Chair and

         11  members of the Committee. My name is Cynthia Doris

         12  Pinn, and I am the Chair of the Housing and Land Use

         13  Committee of Community Board 3. Our Chairperson, Ms.

         14  Brenda Fryson, would not be here today. However,

         15  with your indulgence she has designated me to read

         16  her statement, which was previously submitted.

         17                 The Bedford Stuyvesant South Rezoning

         18  Plan is the defining moment in the history of our

         19  neighborhood. It is the first major effort of its

         20  kind in close to four decades. Although there is

         21  more work to do, we are excited about the

         22  opportunities that the plan provides, much needed

         23  affordable housing, the growth of businesses and job

         24  creation, and the preservation of our beautiful

         25  blocks.
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          2                 This is a journey that has lasted

          3  close to a year and a half. Along the way we wanted

          4  to make certain that our neighbors were fully aware

          5  of the rezoning plan as it developed. We held

          6  information sessions of the Housing and Land Use

          7  Committee and Board members scoured the neighborhood

          8  maps and dockets in hand to study as much as we

          9  could firsthand. Our intent was to make certain that

         10  the zoning designation in the proposed plan fully

         11  met the needs of our community.

         12                 Concerns regarding building heights,

         13  FAR and other technical issues were hammered out in

         14  our ongoing sessions with the City Planning team.

         15  Our public hearing last June 3rd was packed with

         16  close to 200 residents. Through it all, we listened,

         17  learned and shared our views. It has been a profound

         18  experience in the best traditions of community

         19  boards.

         20                 For a citizen board, portions of the

         21  plan were tough going, but we hung in there with the

         22  sure guiding hands of Cynthia Pinn, that's me, and

         23  Wilma Maynard, Chair and Co-chair of the Housing and

         24  Land Use Committee.

         25                 From the outset, the partnership with
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          2  Purnim Kapur, Winston Von Engel, Stephanie Becker

          3  and others at the City Planning had been a model of

          4  how community and government should work together.

          5  They attended work sessions, walked our streets and

          6  were ready with answers and recommendations whenever

          7  we needed them.

          8                 We extend our thanks to Borough

          9  President Marty Markowitz, and Commissioner Amanda

         10  Burden for their support. We are extremely grateful

         11  to Council Member Vann and Council Member Mealy for

         12  their support for this rezoning plan. On behalf of

         13  all of the members of Community Board 3, I extend

         14  our heartfelt thanks to this Committee for hearing

         15  this plan today. We are hopeful that there will be a

         16  favorable vote, and that the plan will pass the

         17  Stated Meeting.

         18                 This action will help us to quickly

         19  move to the northern section and we are ready.

         20                 Finally, this is testimony of

         21  thanksgiving and hope from the people of Bedford

         22  Stuyvesant, and I thank you.

         23                 MR. GRANNUM: My name is Colvin

         24  Grannum. I'm the President of Bedford Stuyvesant

         25  Restoration Corporation. Good morning. It's my

                                                            20

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  pleasure to be here, Chairman Avella, Councilman

          3  Vann and to the other members of the Council.

          4                 I'm here, of course, to speak in

          5  favor of the proposed rezoning. I represent both

          6  Bedford Stuyvesant Restoration Corporation, which is

          7  the nation's oldest community development

          8  corporation, celebrating its 40th anniversary, as

          9  well as an organization called "The Coalition for

         10  the Improvement of Bedford Stuyvesant," which

         11  consists of close to 20 different not-for-profit,

         12  for-profit and civic organizations, which are

         13  interested in strengthening the community of Central

         14  Brooklyn and Bedford Stuyvesant, in particular.

         15                 Bedford Stuyvesant Restoration has

         16  been a historic anchor for community development in

         17  Central Brooklyn and in Bedford Stuyvesant in

         18  particular. We've developed over 2,000 units of

         19  housing in our history, both rental and home

         20  ownership. We've developed more than 300,000 square

         21  feet of commercial space, and we currently manage

         22  and operate commercial space, as well as housing.

         23                 We are currently rehabbing

         24  brownstones for the purposes of both preserving the

         25  brownstones and creating affordable housing. And we
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          2  also are in the process of co-developing more than

          3  150 units of mixed income condominiums, which will

          4  be facilitated by the proposed rezoning, and

          5  co-developing more than 18,000 square feet of

          6  commercial space, which also will be facilitated by

          7  the proposed rezoning.

          8                 And our commercial revitalization

          9  activities range from merchant organizing to small

         10  business attraction to initiating the formation of

         11  the BID. I would like to echo everything that's been

         12  said about the collaborative process. I don't mean

         13  to name everybody. You've heard a lot about all the

         14  leadership and collaboration. Council Member Vann I

         15  think always deserves accolades for his sensitivity

         16  and commitment to guiding collaborative processes,

         17  and the community board clearly was a leader here in

         18  balancing interests.

         19                 And what we have here I think is a

         20  delicate balance between preservation of a historic

         21  architecturally significant community, and growth to

         22  meet the future needs of a growing population of

         23  middle and lower and moderate income households.

         24                 For us as an organization, as I said

         25  earlier, the zoning will really facilitate our work
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          2  on Fulton Street, which is not just a major

          3  commercial corridor in Central Brooklyn, but it's a

          4  vital commercial artery that runs virtually the full

          5  length of Brooklyn, and it will mean more vibrancy

          6  on Fulton Street. It will mean more housing, it will

          7  mean more commercial spaces, and I think it will

          8  mean greater safety and it will be a stabilizing

          9  influence. So, we really thank the work and the

         10  wisdom and the guidance of all the stakeholders and

         11  we're pleased to be able to speak in support of

         12  this.

         13                 MS. PERRY: Good morning. My name is

         14  Sharonnie Perry, and I'm on the Executive Council

         15  for Present Grove Gospel Tabernacle, and I'd just

         16  like to say for the record that we are in support of

         17  the proposed zoning plan, except for one item, and I

         18  would like to read a statement now from Bishop

         19  Albert L. Jamison, Sr., who is the Pastor at

         20  Pleasant Grove Full Gospel Tabernacle.

         21                 Let me take this opportunity to thank

         22  the New York City Council Land Use Committee for

         23  allowing Sharonnie Perry, a member of my Executive

         24  Council, to read this statement on my behalf, due to

         25  the fact that I am out of town. A special thank you
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          2  to Councilwoman Darlene Mealy and her staff for

          3  taking the time to meet with me and members of my

          4  Executive Council about concerns on the proposed

          5  zoning change for Bedford Stuyvesant South, the

          6  dilemma we are facing on the north side of Fulton

          7  Street and Howard Avenue to proposed R6B. I wish to

          8  thank Community Board 3 for their modification and

          9  recommendation which they voted on June 25th, 2007,

         10  that Fulton, Howard and Saratoga be increased from

         11  the proposed R6B to R7D, which would allow for

         12  increased building sides on an inclusionary housing

         13  program.

         14                 Recently the New York City Planning

         15  Commission voted on the Bedford Stuyvesant South

         16  Rezoning proposal. This rezoning will include

         17  Atlantic to Quincy from Franklin to Saratoga. As a

         18  result, the Fulton Street corridor will be rezoned

         19  to R7D in certain areas on both the north and south

         20  side, which would allow you to build up to eight

         21  floors with two setbacks with the total of ten

         22  floors, including community space.

         23                 Based on the new zoning my church

         24  developed in partnership with Enterprise Foundation,

         25  the Faye Center (phonetic) and Central Brooklyn

                                                            24

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Community Service Center to build affordable housing

          3  on Fulton Street and Howard Avenue over the church,

          4  which is greatly needed in the eastern section of

          5  Bedford Stuyvesant. After attending a public hearing

          6  the earlier part of this year, the Church began

          7  soliciting support from the community and community

          8  leaders. Members of my congregation did a community

          9  survey and solicited letters from the surrounding

         10  area of the church in support of our proposed

         11  project.

         12                 I am asking on behalf of the

         13  constituents of the eastern section of Bedford

         14  Stuyvesant, that the New York City Land Use

         15  Committee study the proposed rezoning and take the

         16  need of corrective measures to increase the proposed

         17  rezoning of Fulton, Howard and Saratoga from an R6B

         18  to a R7D.

         19                 The alternative will be as follows:

         20  That (1) that the Church is allowed to file an

         21  expedited rezoning application at no cost to the

         22  church, since the request has been submitted by the

         23  church along with modifications or recommendations.

         24                 (2) That the north side of Fulton,

         25  Howard and Saratoga be expunged from the present
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          2  proposed rezoning application for further discussion

          3  and study.

          4                 Again, on behalf of myself, the Faith

          5  Community of Pleasant Grove Full Gospel Tabernacle

          6  and the community at large, I wish to thank you for

          7  your time and consideration, and I look forward to

          8  your response to this request.

          9                 Yours, Bishop Albert L. Jamison,

         10  Pastor, Pleasant Grove Full Gospel Tabernacle. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. I just

         13  wanted to make one quick comment. The suggestion to

         14  rezone to the R7D is unfortunately out of scope, so,

         15  as you probably know, we can't include it in this

         16  application, but I know Council Member Mealy has had

         17  some discussions with you and City Planning and we

         18  should probably follow up in the immediate future to

         19  see what can be done.

         20                 MS. PERRY: Okay. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 I understand we have one other

         23  speaker who wants to speak for this item. Brad

         24  Lender from the Pratt Center.

         25                 MR. LENDER: Good morning. Thanks very
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          2  much for this opportunity to testify. I'm here not

          3  only on my own behalf today, but for Rudy Bryant and

          4  Mercedes Narciso (phonetic). Rudy, the long-time

          5  associate director of the Pratt Center who has

          6  worked in Bed Stuy on Planning and Community

          7  Development issues for decades, and Mercedes

          8  Narciso, who is the lead planner on the Bed Stuy

          9  197-A plan, and we're very pleased to be here in

         10  support of the Bed Stuy South Rezoning proposal,

         11  which we believe reflects the right balance of

         12  preservation of additional density and efforts to

         13  get affordability.

         14                 As many of you know, there was a

         15  197-A planning effort here that has not moved

         16  forward all the way in ULURP, largely because many

         17  of the recommendations of that plan were reflected

         18  in the Bed Stuy South Rezoning and the desires to

         19  get the rezoning done as soon as possible. So, those

         20  principals, though, have helped outline what

         21  happened here, and we hope eventually in the north

         22  area of the neighborhood as well.

         23                 That 197-A plan actually sought even

         24  more additional density than is in the Bed Stuy

         25  South Rezoning, a look at some of the avenues as
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          2  well to try to find places, recognizing the deep

          3  need for housing, but we believe that this is a

          4  really good compromise, that there obviously is a

          5  strong passion for preservation of the row house

          6  side streets throughout the neighborhood, with a

          7  recognition that additional density is appropriate,

          8  both for residential development and for commercial

          9  development on Fulton.

         10                 We're delighted, not that creating a

         11  new zoning district is a goal in and of itself, but

         12  R7D does a nice job of meeting additional density

         13  needs, providing for inclusionary zoning, and

         14  recognizing Fulton Street's context, is a relatively

         15  narrow but significant commercial street, and we're

         16  thrilled with the efforts that City Planning did

         17  here.

         18                 I want to thank especially Councilman

         19  Vann and City Planning for taking so much time to

         20  really balance these interests here and support the

         21  plan.

         22                 The one thing I would say is, of

         23  course, the zoning by itself is not going to address

         24  a set of deeper issues in Bed Stuy, and I would

         25  certainly invite other members who care about this
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          2  neighborhood to work with Councilman Vann on the

          3  comprehensive neighborhood economic development

          4  initiatives, because achieving affordable housing

          5  and good jobs are going to take strong investment in

          6  this area, as well as zoning. Growth is going to

          7  come, and if we want to share it equitably, we're

          8  going to need more to make that happen, but as a

          9  rezoning action we believe this is the right balance

         10  and we're pleased to support it.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         13                 Is there anybody else who wants to

         14  speak on this item? Otherwise we'll close the public

         15  hearing on it.

         16                 We will now ask City Planning to come

         17  back and do the Forest Hills South Rezoning

         18  presentation. C070521 ZMQ. This lies, obviously, in

         19  case anybody doesn't know, in Council Member Katz's

         20  district.

         21                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

         22  Avella, Chair Katz, ladies and gentlemen. My name is

         23  John Young, and I'm the Director of the Queens

         24  Office for the Department of City Planning, and my

         25  comments are going to address both items that are
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          2  coming to you from our office.

          3                 On behalf of City Planning Director

          4  Amanda Burden, I'm very pleased to be here this

          5  morning to present two important zoning proposals

          6  for Queens. One, the Forest Hill South Rezoning

          7  continues our efforts to protect the character of

          8  richly appealing residential communities that are a

          9  foundation of the borough's success; and one which

         10  you will hear shortly, the Jamaica Follow-Up Text

         11  Amendment provides additional flexibility in

         12  development potential to enhance the borough's

         13  ability to compete for new investment in jobs in one

         14  of its prime regional hubs and transit centers.

         15                 I'm joined by Paul Phillips, who is

         16  the Project Manager for the Forest Hills South

         17  Rezoning Proposal, and Deputy Carney, the Deputy

         18  Director for our office will be presenting the

         19  Jamaica Follow-Up Text Amendment.

         20                 The Forest Hills South Rezoning

         21  Proposal can be considered an extension of the very

         22  first neighborhood rezoning in Queens adopted under

         23  the Bloomberg Administration, the Forest Hills

         24  rezoning from September 2002, which updated zoning

         25  on 60 blocks to the north and west of the current
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          2  rezoning area.

          3                 Like that prior rezoning effort, the

          4  Forest Hills South Rezoning recognizes that the

          5  area's existing one- and two-family development

          6  patterns can be more closely matched, using lower

          7  density contextual designation, and intrusions of

          8  commercial uses onto residential side streets can be

          9  curbed by reducing the depth of commercial overlay

         10  zones.

         11                 Paul will present the details of this

         12  40-block rezoning proposal in just a minute. I want

         13  to say that like the earlier Forest Hills rezoning,

         14  there has been tremendous leadership to advance the

         15  rezoning, the Forest Hills South Rezoning, by

         16  Council Member Melinda Katz and invaluable community

         17  advocacy by the Forest Hills Community and Civic

         18  Association led by Barbara Stuchinski. Queens

         19  Community Board 6 and Borough President Helen

         20  Marshall expedited their public reviews in order to

         21  quickly implement the rezoning which enjoys their

         22  strong support.

         23                 I also want to briefly talk about --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: John, if you

         25  would, I would ask you to come back, since we have
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          2  speakers on both items.

          3                 MR. YOUNG: Oh, on both items.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

          5                 MR. YOUNG: Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, let's just do

          7  the Forest Hills, first.

          8                 MR. PHILLIPS: Good morning,

          9  Chairperson Avella and Chairperson Katz, Council

         10  Members. My name is Phillips, and I am the Project

         11  Manager for the Forest Hills South Rezoning.

         12                 The study area is bounded by Kessle

         13  Street to the north, Union Turnpike to the east and

         14  to the south, and 69th Avenue to the west.

         15                 Currently the area is zoned R3-2,

         16  which is a general residence district, and C1-2 and

         17  C2-2 overlays are mapped between 69th Avenue and

         18  74th Avenue, along Metropolitan Avenue. This zoning

         19  designation remains as it was zoned in 1961.

         20                 The collective purpose in need of the

         21  rezoning is to choose zoning designations that are

         22  reflective of the existing built environment and

         23  also to ensure that future residential development

         24  is consistent, and to ensure that commercial uses do

         25  not intrude on the residential side streets.
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          2                 The Department proposes to rezone 41

          3  blocks in the Forest Hill South section of Queens.

          4  Two areas are proposed to be rezoned to R3A. The

          5  first area is north of Metropolitan Avenue. North of

          6  Metropolitan Avenue and west of 74th Avenue, and

          7  also south of Metropolitan and west of 74th Avenue.

          8                 R3A is a one- and two-family detached

          9  zone. It has a minimum lot area of 2,325 square

         10  feet, and a minimum lot area of 25 square feet, and

         11  it also has a requirement of one dwelling unit, one

         12  parking space per dwelling unit.

         13                 We are also proposing to rezone three

         14  contiguous blocks in an area south of Kessle Avenue

         15  and north of Metropolitan Avenue to an R3X zoning

         16  designation. R3X is also a one- and two-family

         17  detached zone; however, has larger lot area and lot

         18  width requirements than the R3A one- and two-family

         19  detached zone.

         20                 We are also proposing to rezone an

         21  area to an R3-1, which is a one- and two-family

         22  detached and semi-detached zone.

         23                 This area is located south of Kessle

         24  Street, along Union Turnpike.

         25                 R3-1 is a one- and two-family
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          2  detached and semi-detached zone. It has the

          3  requirement of 3,800 square feet for detached

          4  structures, and a minimum of 40 feet lot width, and

          5  for other structures it's 1,700 square feet, and a

          6  minimum lot area of 17 feet.

          7                 Along Metropolitan Avenue we are

          8  proposing to zone the commercial overlays from C1-2

          9  and C2-2 overlays to C1-3 and C2-3 overlays.

         10                 We're also proposing to reduce the

         11  deputy of those overlays to 100 feet, thereby

         12  removing the commercial encroachment on the

         13  residential side streets.

         14                 This will moderately increase the

         15  commercial floor area for parking spaces from 300

         16  square feet under the C1-2 and C2-2 overlays to 400

         17  square feet per commercial square foot.

         18                 Together these actions collectively

         19  will ensure that future residential development in

         20  this area is consistent with the built environment,

         21  ensure that commercial uses can continue along

         22  Metropolitan Avenue, but not encroach on the

         23  residential side streets and preserve this

         24  predominantly one- and two-family character in this

         25  area of Forest Hills.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I understand that

          3  we're getting ready for the City Council Stated

          4  Meeting. What I'd like to do is call on Council

          5  Member Katz. We have one speaker in favor. We will

          6  do your comments, have the one speaker and then we

          7  will go into recess.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair. I'd like to first clearly thank Commissioner

         10  Burden and John and Paul for all of the work that

         11  they did on this rezoning. It is a long time coming,

         12  and we've been working together on it for many

         13  years, and it really is an extension of what we did

         14  in 2001, much to the credit of the Forest Hills

         15  Civic Association, which is Barbara Stuchinski, and

         16  all the folks in her group who you will be hearing

         17  from soon.

         18                 But this rezoning has a lot of great

         19  things in it that were necessary. First of all, the

         20  community facilities text amendment that we did many

         21  years ago, this area would have been left out of

         22  those text amendments that were so useful to the

         23  entire City. We wanted to make sure that this area

         24  was as protected as the other areas of Forest Hills.

         25  And plus, on Metropolitan Avenue, we wanted to avoid
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          2  what we call "commercial creep," which is on Metro

          3  businesses started coming out into the residential

          4  communities.

          5                 But in brief, this will go a long way

          6  in protecting the community. They are single-family

          7  homes mostly. It's a very small and less dense

          8  community, and we wanted to keep it that way. But

          9  simply I wanted to thank City Planning for the great

         10  work that they did with the community on this and

         11  many other projects. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         13                 Barbara.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Sometimes it

         15  just works. Sometimes it's just easy. Out there, all

         16  of you that are here to testify, sometimes it really

         17  is easy.

         18                 MS. STUCHINSKI: Barbara Stuchinski,

         19  President of Forest Hills Community and Civic. I

         20  said little old ladies can get away with kissing

         21  guys. Very obviously, it's a mutual admiration.

         22                 I am only here to say thank you,

         23  Chairman Avella, Chair Katz, Council Members, City

         24  Planning, Paul and John, Borough President's Office,

         25  these guys came to our civic meetings, came to
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          2  Community Board 6, when we expressed concerns they

          3  went back. Amanda Burden expressed some concerns,

          4  they went back. The plans they drew up are

          5  outstanding. We're extremely grateful. It's a

          6  reclassification that's essential and we thank you

          7  for your support. And I'm finished.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you for

          9  being brief. We will now take a recess, and

         10  immediately after the Stated Meeting is over, which

         11  we hope to be quick, we will reconvene and continue

         12  the agenda.

         13                 (Recess taken.)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Again, we

         15  apologize for the inconvenience, but we definitely

         16  had to pass this legislation in the Stated Meeting.

         17                 We will now go back to the agenda.

         18  Skipping around once again, because some of the

         19  members are still not back, let us move to Land Use

         20  No. 570, which is 45 Summit Street rezoning. C060477

         21  ZMK. Application by LLJ Realty for a zoning map

         22  change.

         23                 I will call up the applicant. This

         24  application lies within Council Member DeBlasio's

         25  district.
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          2                 MR. MICHAELS: Good morning, Mr.

          3  Chairman, members of the Subcommittee. My name is

          4  Lance Michaels, from the law firm of Statmeyer

          5  Balcon (phonetic). I am appearing before you on

          6  behalf of the owner of 45 Summit Street, LLJ Realty

          7  Corporation, concerning its application to rezone a

          8  portion of the block founded by Summit Street,

          9  Columbia, Carroll and Hamilton Avenue from M1-1 to

         10  R6, just located over here.

         11                 As you know, this amendment to zoning

         12  map 16-A will permit the development of a quality

         13  housing residential building.

         14                 Throughout this rezoning process, the

         15  applicant has worked in conjunction with adjoining

         16  property owners, the community board and elected

         17  officials to design the proposed development, in a

         18  matter sympathetic and contextual to Red Hook

         19  neighborhood.

         20                 From the outset of the project, the

         21  applicant has proposed developing a quality housing

         22  building. This building is the most logical type of

         23  building for the site, since it is lowest cost type

         24  of structure, one of low height without any

         25  setbacks. It also comes very close to maximizing the
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          2  FAR R6 zone. While a non-quality housing building

          3  could theoretically achieve a maximum FAR that's

          4  greater, in fact 2.43 compared to the applicant's

          5  2.19, this would not be a financially realistic

          6  building because it would essentially have to be a

          7  13-story building with floor plates of less than

          8  2,790 square feet, and that would include the core

          9  in the elevator. So, by the time you got through,

         10  you'd have very small floors.

         11                 During the course of the community

         12  board review process, an issue arose as to a

         13  commercial use on applicant's property, and one

         14  adjacent to the east. The tenant on the applicant's

         15  property, who located thereafter, began the process

         16  with the Department of City Planning in order to

         17  provide revenue while we undertook the rezoning, has

         18  a short lease expiring in 2008.

         19                 He sub-leased --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Hold on one

         21  second. Can somebody close the door in the back,

         22  because as soon as that door opens, we can't hear

         23  what's going on. Thank you.

         24                 MR. MICHAELS: He sub-leased some of

         25  his space without permission to the Gowanus Nursery.
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          2  The Borough President has offered to assist the

          3  Gowanus Nursery in relocating from the site, as has

          4  the Council member. In fact, they're supposed to

          5  look at space tomorrow.

          6                 The Borough President in the

          7  community also expressed concern over the commercial

          8  activity of Wuff and Whiskers, east of the

          9  applicant's property. Located here. As a result, the

         10  Borough President proposed modifying the zoning map

         11  change to retain the manufacturing zoning

         12  designation for the property between 100 and 200

         13  feet from Columbia Street, on the frontage here of

         14  Summit Street, to keep this as manufacturing to

         15  protect Wuff and Whiskers. The application before

         16  you is modified by the City Planning Commission to

         17  respond to this concern with the applicant's

         18  support.

         19                 Finally, let me reiterate that the

         20  applicant has been responsive to community concerns

         21  throughout this process. In April of last year, the

         22  applicant met with the now former Land Use Committee

         23  Chair and District Manager to brief them on the

         24  proposed development well in advance of the ULURP

         25  process.
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          2                 At the request of the District

          3  Manager and Land Use Committee Chair, the applicant

          4  redesigned the facade of the proposed building to

          5  make it more contextual to the surrounding area.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  DeBlasio, do you wish to make a comment on this

          9  application?

         10                 We have three speakers on this item.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you. I

         13  want to thank Chair Katz and the Speaker and her

         14  staff. Everyone has been very helpful on this item.

         15  This is really one of the more positive experiences

         16  I've had in the last six years of dealing with a

         17  developer who wanted to do something in our

         18  community because we have very consistently raised a

         19  wide range of concerns, and I can actually say that

         20  each and every one has been responded to. And I also

         21  want to thank City Planning. They have been very

         22  flexible, because we did have a situation here where

         23  there were important businesses that provided really

         24  rare services in our community and needed to be

         25  protected and City Planning really went out of their
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          2  way to make that happen.

          3                 So, the bottom line here is I do

          4  support this project. I want to note that from the

          5  beginning the developer has worked very hard to make

          6  sure the project was in context with the rest of the

          7  neighborhood specifically, that there was a really

          8  strong commitment to making sure there was

          9  sufficient parking and that was underground. There

         10  is an unusually positive commitment here to

         11  affordable housing, and their 20 percent commitment

         12  is very heartening to me. I'm a believer that

         13  affordable housing needs to not just be in the mega

         14  developments, but in developments of this size as

         15  well, because we have a profound need for it in our

         16  community, and this developer and the team, everyone

         17  representing him, has been very responsive on that.

         18                 And, so, I really want to say, I want

         19  to thank everyone involved. I want to thank my staff

         20  as well, because this particular piece about

         21  protecting the businesses that were on this site was

         22  very thorny and took a lot of work. But as the

         23  witness said, both City Planning, with their good

         24  work, we were able to accommodate one business

         25  immediately, and another one, the Gowanus Nursery,
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          2  is in the process of being accommodated. I do want

          3  to emphasize how important it is that we finish that

          4  process. We're working with the developer, the

          5  Borough President's Office, everyone has been

          6  extremely helpful, but we have to finish that

          7  process successfully.

          8                 But otherwise, I just want to say

          9  this has been a very positive experience, and I

         10  thank everyone for their support and urge my

         11  colleagues to support the development.

         12                 I do believe, one other thing, Mr.

         13  Chairman, it does need a technical modification at

         14  City Planning, which I am not an expert on, but

         15  wanted to put that out there.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions for

         17  the applicant, before we proceed to the public

         18  hearing on this item?

         19                 Seeing none, thank you.

         20                 We have three speakers in opposition.

         21  I will call them up all together. I have two

         22  speakers from the Gowanus Nursery and a speaker from

         23  the Southwest Brooklyn IDC.

         24                 MS. PALADINO: (Not identified for the

         25  record.) I'm the owner of Gowanus Nursery, and a few
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          2  weeks ago, as I was sitting in my office, there were

          3  a few people who walked down the street and they

          4  said, oh, I love living on this block. It's so great

          5  that there's a dog kennel and a nursery and a set

          6  design place. There aren't very many places like

          7  this left in Brooklyn. And I'm really happy that

          8  Wuffs and Whiskers has been exempted from this ULURP

          9  proceedings, and I would like to ask for the same

         10  consideration for my business.

         11                 We started out at 102 Third Street,

         12  which has similar problems, in terms of relocating

         13  businesses from there, given the Gowanus Canal

         14  Redevelopment, which will happen shortly.

         15                 We started out there on an empty lot

         16  and turned it into something. We did pretty much the

         17  same thing here at 45 Summit Street. It was a truck

         18  and oil pan and tire and insides of everyone's house

         19  filled lot, and cleaned it out and planted trees and

         20  planted cold frames and made a structure and put

         21  plants in and really turned it into something for

         22  the community.

         23                 We often times have people come in

         24  who aren't there to shop at all, it's just about

         25  being in a green space for them. There are some
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          2  speculation as to whether tomorrow that I'm going to

          3  look at another space, and I did want to put on the

          4  record that this space also has considerable

          5  drawbacks. It's not currently zoned for commercial

          6  usage, so we'd be walking into a similar situation

          7  there. The community is against the current use,

          8  which is commercial on a residential property.

          9                 I want to also say that this is a

         10  unique business, and we are not stackable, like

         11  other places are. A lot of people have said it's a

         12  red herring because it's a nursery center and it's a

         13  green business and it's very pretty. Well, it's not

         14  just that. We are going to take up a footprint and

         15  we can't have other businesses above us, and it's

         16  really not feasible for us to be on a roof

         17  somewhere.

         18                 So, if it means anything to people

         19  who believe in the Mayor's green plan, we sort of

         20  the first step in that whole thing. People come to

         21  us to ask questions about how this is really going

         22  to happen in the real life usage of taking plants

         23  that give back to the environment.

         24                 My concern is that there are people

         25  who are trying to find us a legitimate space that we
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          2  can stay in for a long period of time.

          3                 The article that I've given you was

          4  back in May 24th, Diane Cardwell wrote for the New

          5  York Times that sort of details what nurseries, the

          6  plight of nurseries in the New York City area today.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 MS. MILLER: Good morning. My name is

          9  Julia Miller, and for the past three years I've been

         10  employed at Gowanus Nursery. I'm fortunate, rather

         11  blessed to have a front and back yard, and this

         12  means that over 500 perennials have been planted

         13  from Gowanus Nursery in my back and front yard. And

         14  in my front yard there are a lot of questions that

         15  are asked by people passing, where did you get the

         16  plants? What do they need? What are they called? And

         17  within a five-minute walk is Gowanus Nursery, and

         18  that begins my journey as an educator and as a

         19  seller of plants at Gowanus Nursery.

         20                 One of the points that I wanted to

         21  stress is that I sell and teach people about nature,

         22  about the heritage of nature. Some people come into

         23  the nursery who are renters and they say I want to

         24  plant a tree, but, you know, I'm going to be moving

         25  soon, and I stress that trees live beyond us, and
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          2  that is part of what the Mayor is approaching when

          3  he discusses green roofs, and when the issue of the

          4  legacy of nature is brought up.

          5                 I speak Portuguese, French, Spanish

          6  and some Russian and numbers of people come in

          7  speaking those languages, especially French, Creole

          8  and Spanish, and I feel as an educator and as a

          9  seller at Gowanus Nursery I play a vital role in

         10  this nursery and its life, and I would oppose the

         11  zone change to 45 Summit Street for reasons that are

         12  somewhat selfish but also for reasons that have to

         13  do with the sustainability of this City.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. DUBIN: Good morning. My name is

         16  Rachael Dubin. I work at the Southwest Brooklyn

         17  Industrial Development Corporation, which is a

         18  non-profit organization, and I provide services to

         19  manufacturing and industrial businesses in Red Hook,

         20  Gowanus and Sunset Park. The Gowanus Nursery, as

         21  well as the business next door fall into that

         22  category simply because of the requirements they

         23  need to operate their business.

         24                 It's ironic that I'm here today. The

         25  last time I was here was to testify at the hearing,
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          2  the oversight hearing that Council Member Brewer and

          3  Council Member Yassky had on the obstacles that face

          4  mom and pop businesses in New York City, and this is

          5  such an example of that.

          6                 I think that really the saddest part

          7  about this rezoning is that the property went ahead

          8  and leased property and gave a short-term lease to

          9  businesses knowing that the possibility of those

         10  leases being renewed was very small. This placed a

         11  huge financial burden on the two businesses that

         12  moved there just a year and a half ago, and I think

         13  the fact that they did sign these short-term leases

         14  really speaks to the fact that there is so little

         15  property available for businesses to relocate to and

         16  expand in.

         17                 Two years ago we did a, my

         18  organization did a study for the New York City

         19  Economic Development Corporation and found that

         20  there was only a three percent vacancy rate in Red

         21  Hook and Gowanus for industrial property, so it just

         22  puts a huge strain on our entrepreneurs, and this

         23  rezoning sends a very strong signal to entrepreneurs

         24  that it's very possible that they're just going to

         25  be rezoned out of our City.
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          2                 So, I think if there is a dedication

          3  to these mom and pop shops, much like the Gowanus

          4  Nursery is, we really need to make space for them.

          5  And I hope that the property owner listens to

          6  Council Member DeBlasio when he asks that these

          7  businesses find new location before the

          8  redevelopment takes place, if that's what's going to

          9  happen. Thanks very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         11  DeBlasio, do you want to make a comment?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 Well, I certainly want to say Gowanus

         15  Nursery is really quite beloved in the community and

         16  I think the explanation of the important services

         17  provided and the impact it has on the neighborhood

         18  is right. I do believe everyone has acted in good

         19  faith here. I'm sure that there will be a positive

         20  outcome.

         21                 The property owners made abundantly

         22  clear we're talking about at least a year before any

         23  move will be necessary. I think with the commitment

         24  of the property owner, our office, to Borough

         25  President's Office, I think we can successfully find
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          2  a new site. Obviously we want to make it a site that

          3  will have long-term capacity and I'm committed to

          4  finding whatever other supports are necessary to

          5  make this work.

          6                 So, I appreciate the point that was

          7  made about the precious land we have and what we're

          8  going to do with it in general.

          9                 I am a big believer in affordable

         10  housing, I think it is a big step forward. A

         11  development of this size will have 20 percent of

         12  affordable housing. That's a very important priority

         13  for my community, but obviously we're trying to

         14  balance the needs. I do feel in the case of both

         15  these businesses we found different ways to balance

         16  those needs, but the bottom line is I want to say

         17  publicly we're very committed to finding a way over

         18  the next year or year and a half to make sure that

         19  Gowanus Nursery ends up in an acceptable long-term

         20  location. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Is

         22  there anybody else signed up to speak on this item?

         23  Otherwise I will close the public hearing, and we

         24  will move to the last presentation by City Planning,

         25  which is the Jamaica Plan FUCA. N080022 ZRQ. And for
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          2  those of you who don't know what FUCA means,

          3  Follow-Up Corrective Action, which is a term we

          4  actually created ourselves. And the correction

          5  action lies within Council Member Leroy Comrie's

          6  district.

          7                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, again, Chair

          8  Avella, Council Members. I'm John Young, from the --

          9  it is still morning, yes. I'm John Young from the

         10  Department of City Planning. I'm Director of the

         11  Queens Office, and I'm joined by Deborah Carney, the

         12  Deputy Director of our office to discuss the Jamaica

         13  Follow-Up Text Amendment, Follow-Up Corrective

         14  Action, which will provide additional flexibility

         15  and development potential to enhance the Borough's

         16  ability to compete for new investment in jobs in

         17  this prime regional hub and transit center.

         18                 The Jamaica Follow-Up Text Amendment

         19  is a refinement to the transformative zoning changes

         20  implemented by the Council last month as part of the

         21  Jamaica Plan.

         22                 The creation of special downtown

         23  Jamaica zoning was a centerpiece of the Jamaica

         24  planning strategy, and the current text amendment

         25  augments the special district by allowing a 40 foot
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          2  increase in maximum building height from 250 feet to

          3  290 feet near the JFK Air Train and Long Island

          4  Railroad Station Complex.

          5                 And this is where the district allows

          6  the highest and densest development to occur.

          7                 The text amendment allows

          8  non-residential buildings a more flexible floor

          9  plate by eliminating rear-yard requirements for

         10  sites that adjoin the Long Island Railroad Viaduct

         11  and Deborah Carney will explain these changes to

         12  you.

         13                 I just want to say that the SPDE

         14  follow-up to the Jamaica Plan to create and

         15  implement the current text change benefitted greatly

         16  from the efforts of Council Member Leroy Comrie and

         17  the advocacy of the Greater Jamaica Development

         18  Corporation led by Carlisle Towery. Community Board

         19  12's Executive Committee has recommended support of

         20  the proposal, and Borough President Helen Marshall

         21  had recommended these zoning changes in her comments

         22  on the initial Jamaica Plan, and she issued a

         23  recommendation and strong support of these changes.

         24                 We hope you, too, will support the

         25  Jamaica Follow-Up Text Amendment. And now Debbie
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          2  will present the details of it.

          3                 MS. CAREY: Good morning, Council

          4  Members. It's a pleasure to be able to present this

          5  text amendment, which will actually have these two

          6  changes affecting property shown on this map in red.

          7  These are properties along portions of Archer

          8  Avenue, along Sutphin Boulevard and along 158th

          9  Street, and along the track. These are properties

         10  that are often times constrained by their

         11  configuration, by their shallow depth. The two text

         12  amendments that would help facilitate development on

         13  these properties would increase the building height

         14  limit from 250 feet to 290 feet, within the C6-4

         15  district, and these are the areas shown in red with

         16  stars.

         17                 All of the properties where normally

         18  a rear yard, a 20 foot rear yard requirement would

         19  be needed by zoning, the text would eliminate that

         20  20 foot rear yard requirement, also making it more

         21  likely that development would occur on all of these

         22  sites along the railroad, development sites. Both

         23  the community board and the Borough President

         24  support this and we are looking forward to seeing

         25  the changes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          3  Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just want to

          5  thank City Planning and the Community Board and EDC

          6  and Carlisle Towery and all of the people involved

          7  with Greater Jamaica, and I just want to urge the

          8  Committee to vote aye on this amendment, for

          9  bringing this FUCA through quickly, because we have

         10  hopefully some ongoing projects that we would like

         11  to try to push out and see who would be interested

         12  in them. And as you can see, the properties abut the

         13  railroad so it would be a little oxymoronic to put a

         14  20 foot space in between the railroad property.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         17  from my colleagues? Thank you. We have three

         18  speakers in favor of the application. I will call

         19  them up as a panel. We have two speakers from

         20  Greater Jamaica Development Corporation, and a

         21  Speaker from the Sutphin Archer Association.

         22                 MR. MUSICANT: Good morning. My name

         23  is Max Musicant. My colleague Justin Rogers could

         24  not be here this morning, and I'm here on behalf of

         25  Greater Jamaica Development Corporation and its
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          2  President, Carlisle Towery. I'm testifying in favor

          3  of the Follow-Up Corrective Action in connection

          4  with the Downtown Jamaica Rezoning and Redevelopment

          5  Plan.

          6                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          7  speak this morning.

          8                 This Follow-Up Corrective Action is

          9  an essential element of the Jamaica Plan's rezoning.

         10  It makes possible redevelopment of several sites

         11  around the Air Train and the Long Island Railroad's

         12  Jamaica Station. By waving certain rear yard

         13  requirements and allowing for increased height, and

         14  no additional bulk on lots in the immediate area of

         15  the Long Island Railroad Tracks, these text changes

         16  enable several narrow parcels to accommodate major

         17  development. We are well along in assisting progress

         18  of a mixed use hotel, retail and affordable housing

         19  project, as well as a large scale wholesale show

         20  room and retail development that could begin

         21  construction as early as mid-next year. These

         22  developments, with parking and open space, will

         23  bring both permanent and construction jobs to

         24  Southeast Queens, as well as important new community

         25  amenities.
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          2                 Greater Jamaica is committed to

          3  ensuring that these projects provide substantial

          4  community enhancements, local economic benefits and

          5  affordable housing.

          6                 On behalf of Mr. Towery, Mr.

          7  Chairman, I would like to take this opportunity to

          8  thank you and other Subcommittee members for your

          9  consideration of this amendment to the Jamaica Plan.

         10                 We are particularly grateful to

         11  Speaker Quinn for her support of this corrective

         12  action, which reflects her interest in and knowledge

         13  of economic development needs of Queens.

         14                 We would also like to thank Council

         15  Members Comrie and Katz for their leadership in

         16  advocating this action. We are grateful to

         17  Commissioner Amanda Burden and her staff, who spent

         18  many hours in Jamaica making certain the plan was

         19  responsive to community concerns.

         20                 We are also grateful for the

         21  commitment to Jamaica demonstrated by Deputy Mayor

         22  Dan Doctoroff, and his senior advisor Angela Sohn,

         23  in providing the resources necessary to make Jamaica

         24  a rewarding place to live, work and shop.

         25                 Mr. Chairman, and members of the
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          2  Committee, we look forward to continuing our

          3  productive work with you in bringing these exciting

          4  and long-awaited changes to Jamaica.

          5                 Thank you, again, for permitting me

          6  to appear before you this morning.

          7                 MR. SPIRITOS: Good morning, Chair

          8  Avella and Council members. My name is Jeff

          9  Spiritos. I represent Sutphin Archer Associates, the

         10  developer of one of the parcels affected by this

         11  FUCA. First I want to thank the City Council for its

         12  strong support of the Jamaica Rezoning Plan, and the

         13  Council members who have supported this FUCA, Comrie

         14  and Katz, and others as well. We are the developer

         15  that plans for a hotel, retail and affordable

         16  housing project that backs up to the railroad, and

         17  the changes to this FUCA are crucial to our being

         18  able to utilize our full FAR and to also being able

         19  to build two floors of retail, the full depth of

         20  this site. So, just again to thank the Council for

         21  its support of this rezoning. Thanks for the

         22  opportunity to speak.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 Unless there is someone else signed

         25  up to speak on this item, I'll close the public
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          2  hearing.

          3                 Okay, we'll move on to the next item,

          4  which we will now take Land Use No. 571, commonly

          5  referred to as the South Brooklyn Savings Bank 130

          6  Court rezoning. C070156 ZSK.

          7                 MR. LEVIN: Mr. Chairman, members of

          8  the Committee, my name is Raymond Levin. I'm with

          9  the law firm of Wachtel and Masyr. We're Land Use

         10  Council to 2 Trees Management Company, applicant for

         11  a special permit, pursuant to Zoning Resolution,

         12  Section 74-711, to modify height, setback, yard,

         13  court and parking regulations, to allow within the

         14  Cobble Hill Historic District and limited height one

         15  district, the preservation, reuse of the South

         16  Brooklyn Savings Bank Building for a food market,

         17  and development of a new six story, 60 foot high

         18  mixed use building, with ground floor retail on a

         19  vacant parcel. It will have 37 rental apartments.

         20                 The proposed building will fill a gap

         21  in the Atlantic Avenue frontage. As you can see in

         22  this drawing, this is the bank building, adjacent to

         23  it is a parking lot, this is the building that will

         24  replace the parking lot.

         25                 I'd like to take a couple of minutes
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          2  to address some of the things that I think you will

          3  hear during this hearing.

          4                 Many people have said that there is a

          5  quid pro quo between preserving the bank building

          6  and the approvals that we received from both the

          7  Landmarks Preservation Commission, who has found

          8  this building appropriate to the district and the

          9  City Planning Commission. They suggest that that

         10  preservation is the quid pro quo in exchange for the

         11  waivers granted.

         12                 The way the zoning resolution reads,

         13  the main item that Landmarks looks at is the

         14  appropriateness of the building that's being

         15  proposed and how that contributes to the

         16  preservation of the district, and that's what

         17  landmarks focused on, and that's how they view

         18  applications for certificates of appropriateness.

         19  They look at each one individually and make

         20  judgments based on whether the proposal is

         21  appropriate to the location and this one was no

         22  different than that.

         23                 There are also going to be a lot of

         24  testimony about this breaking of the 50 foot height

         25  limit in the district being a precedent for future
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          2  actions. As I mentioned, Landmarks looks at things

          3  individually. They look at whether they are

          4  appropriate to the district. They look at them

          5  without respect to zoning. That's why we're here

          6  today asking for seven waivers, because the

          7  Commission felt that in order to develop on this

          8  parking lot with the existing bank building, that in

          9  order to create an appropriate building, they needed

         10  to advocate for a number of waivers that would

         11  otherwise restrict how the building would be

         12  oriented on the site.

         13                 This site in the Cobble Hill Historic

         14  District is by Atlantic Avenue, a wide commercial

         15  street. It contains a commercial building that is 58

         16  feet high, a preexisting building, that's the bank

         17  which only has one floor in it. The site includes an

         18  open area to be developed, so we're not touching the

         19  existing bank building, and we were unable to use

         20  the development rights that are associated with that

         21  building.

         22                 Further, the lot is only 80 feet in

         23  depth. Most of the lots are 100 feet deep, and

         24  lastly, the bank building will be restored and

         25  maintained. We have looked at all the other
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          2  potential sites within the Cobble Hill Historic

          3  District. There are none that have these

          4  characteristics.

          5                 The Historic District has been in

          6  effect for 38 years, and there haven't been any

          7  waivers granted, there haven't even been any sought.

          8  That's because there aren't any other sites that

          9  have these unique qualities and owners understand

         10  that.

         11                 The applicant in this case has spent

         12  in excess of three years pursuing the approvals that

         13  we're seeking this Committee and the City Council to

         14  endorse. The Landmarks Preservation Commission, made

         15  up of professionals have reviewed this in detail.

         16  There were numerous changes to the design before

         17  they approved it. City Planning Commission, under

         18  the zoning resolution looked at it, and felt that

         19  those waivers were appropriate on the site. So, we

         20  think that the grants here do not set a precedent,

         21  that there aren't other sites that have these

         22  characteristics.

         23                 We also believe that the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission and City Planning Commission

         25  are bodies who look at -- who will not look at this
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          2  as a waiver of the 50 foot height limit to go to 60

          3  feet, and that somehow that in and of itself,

          4  without all these other characteristics, will allow

          5  other developments, inappropriate developments to

          6  intrude within the district.

          7                 We are here, I'm sorry I didn't

          8  introduce Sam Charney from 2 Trees Management, to

          9  answer any questions you may have. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As I mentioned,

         11  this project lies within Council Member Bill

         12  DeBlasio's district, and I would like to call on him

         13  for his statement.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you and

         16  thank Chair Katz and the Land Use staff, the Speaker

         17  and her staff. We've all talked a lot in these last

         18  few weeks and you and Chair Katz have been extremely

         19  helpful to me in making sense of this particular

         20  site, which is a very sensitive site, and this

         21  seemingly small matter raises a lot of very large

         22  issues, and that's something I came to understand

         23  over these weeks, but it's been very, very helpful

         24  to have more experienced Land Use hands to help me

         25  think it through.
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          2                 I've talked to literally dozens of

          3  people over these last few weeks, and I want to

          4  thank them all. I want to thank Ray Levin, and

          5  everyone associated with 2 Trees. We've had a number

          6  of discussions. I want to thank all of the community

          7  leaders, many of them are here today that I've been

          8  talking to and other experts at City Planning,

          9  Landmarks Preservation, the Historic Districts

         10  Council, other entities who have helped to give me

         11  perspective on this. I did support this project

         12  through several iterations and at the Community

         13  Board and at the City Planning Commission. But at

         14  the City Planning Commission, when I testified I

         15  said that it was my hope we could find a way to keep

         16  this project in the 50 foot limit. And I've gotten

         17  an education on this issue of precedent. I don't

         18  think it's invalid for those who say this is, as Mr.

         19  Levin was saying, this is a particular site with

         20  very special conditions that may not create a

         21  precedent. I don't think that's an illogical way of

         22  thinking.

         23                 But the burden I try to put on myself

         24  in listening to my constituents was the question of

         25  can we guarantee we're not creating the wrong kind
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          2  of precedent, and I think something that dawned on

          3  me, as I listened to people more and more was the

          4  difference between today and 38 years ago, whatever

          5  the exact amount of time it was when this district

          6  was originally established. We've seen the world

          7  turn on its head, in terms of development pressures

          8  in New York City, especially in the last five or ten

          9  years, and in the time all of us have been in the

         10  Council, even our own districts, really don't

         11  resemble what we found the day we came into office.

         12  And, so, I feel the development pressure surrounding

         13  us cause us to have to look at this site very

         14  carefully, and my standard is simple, I can't do

         15  something that would cause me to feel I had set a

         16  negative precedent and opened the door to the wrong

         17  kind of development going forward.

         18                 I do want to say very clearly, and

         19  I'll conclude rapidly here, I want to say very

         20  clearly, there are a lot of very positive elements

         21  to this project, a lot of very well thought out

         22  elements. The aesthetics clearly fit the surrounding

         23  area, the preservation of the independence bank

         24  building, that is a crucial site for our community,

         25  a really significant landmark, and I have no doubt
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          2  it will be well preserved under this plan. The

          3  Trader Joe's store that's coming into that site is

          4  something that a lot of people in the community have

          5  wanted and something we need. There has been real

          6  concern about parking and there is a waiver that was

          7  asked for by the company on the parking front. I am

          8  satisfied by the letter that 2 Trees has given the

          9  community and given me, guaranteeing spots in their

         10  other development across the street for people who

         11  will go into this residential building. So, I'm

         12  comfortable that that waiver is appropriate.

         13                 The only waiver I'm uncomfortable

         14  with is the height waiver. So, what I would urge my

         15  colleagues to do is to modify this application and

         16  send it back to City Planning for their

         17  modification. The other waivers are appropriate, but

         18  the height waiver is not appropriate, and this

         19  building I think can be built very well and be a

         20  contribution to our community so long as it stays

         21  within the 50 foot height limit.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 Questions of my colleagues of the

         25  applicant? We have a number of speakers on both
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          2  sides of the issue. Seeing none, thank you.

          3                 Oh, I'm sorry.

          4                 Council Member Stewart.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair. The 60 feet that you're asking, do you

          7  see any foreseeable adverse effect for it to be at

          8  60 feet, instead of 50?

          9                 MR. LEVIN: Well, in terms of the

         10  feasibility of the project, it becomes challenged.

         11  The economics of this project are very difficult,

         12  and obviously there is risk in doing any development

         13  project. Hopefully Council Member DeBlasio is

         14  correct and things are just going to get better and

         15  better and rents will go up and up and therefore it

         16  would make sense possibly to do it at the 50 foot

         17  five-story limit. But given this site, and given the

         18  preservation of the building, the building as

         19  proposed is some 20 percent under what the zoning

         20  would allow in terms of floor area.

         21                 If you take off the top floor, you're

         22  knocking down another 15 percent and five units. So,

         23  it becomes, according to the pro forma, basically a

         24  break even project. Whether any of us would invest

         25  their money for a projected zero return, I'm not
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          2  sure we would do that. I can't say whether my client

          3  is or isn't going to do that, but it certainly

          4  challenges the economics of this project. Our client

          5  owns other buildings within this area, so there may

          6  be a reason for them to proceed, because they do

          7  have a major investment in the surrounding area, but

          8  it's very challenging.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Are there any

         10  other buildings of this height? Or any other

         11  buildings that is in the immediate vicinity that is

         12  over 50 feet?

         13                 MR. LEVIN: Well, the bank building

         14  itself is over 50 feet. Within the historic

         15  district, on the corner of this block, down the

         16  street there are a couple of buildings that are

         17  higher than 50 feet. This property is on a corner,

         18  the other three corners are not in height districts,

         19  so diagonally across the street there is a 120 foot

         20  building. The others are not burdened by this height

         21  limit and historic district. So, of the four

         22  corners, this is the only one that's in there.

         23                 The Cobble Hill Historic District is

         24  basically a very low-rise area. It starts at

         25  Atlantic Avenue and moves south. Obviously Atlantic
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          2  Avenue is a different kind of street than most of

          3  the small neighborhood streets as you move south, so

          4  I'm sure there are other people who will testify

          5  about that. But there aren't that many taller

          6  buildings, and the taller buildings tend to be on

          7  the wide Atlantic Avenue.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         10                 MR. LEVIN: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We'll now take

         12  alternating panels of speakers in favor and against.

         13                 We'll start with a panel in

         14  opposition, Historic Districts Council, Simeon;

         15  Cobble Hill Association, Roy; and Franklin and Judy

         16  Stanton, from the Brooklyn Heights Association. I

         17  mean, unless there is a panel.

         18                 Okay, do you want to do a panel? Just

         19  have them come up and you tell me who is on the

         20  panel.

         21                 MR. SLOANE: Hi. My name is Roy

         22  Sloane. I am an officer of the Cobble Hill

         23  Association. I want to thank Bill DeBlasio for

         24  listening to the community, for participating in the

         25  numerous meetings that we had and for recognizing

                                                            68

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  the importance of the 50 foot height limit. I wanted

          3  to thank Council Member DeBlasio for listening to

          4  the community, for participating in the process that

          5  we engaged in, and I want to thank certainly Chair

          6  Avella and all of the other Council people who took

          7  the time to read and listen to the arguments that we

          8  presented opposing this project. We have never been

          9  able to find any preservation benefit in the 60 foot

         10  height, piercing the 50 foot height limit, and I

         11  hope that you will not do so today.

         12                 I am not going to read my testimony

         13  because I don't think it's relevant anymore, so I'm

         14  going to defer to others. Thank you.

         15                 MR. ADAMS: My name is Murray Adams.

         16  I'm President of the Cobble Hill Association.

         17  Chairman Avella, good morning, members of the

         18  Council. I would also like to thank you, Bill, for

         19  listening to us. We had a lot of sessions and went

         20  through a lot of things, and thank you very much.

         21                 I think it's worth saying, because

         22  this is, I believe, a Citywide problem, this

         23  application is, I believe, a misuse of 74-711. That

         24  section was really intended to enable a developer to

         25  adapt a plea, restore and reuse a historic structure
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          2  which was no longer useable in today's world. And in

          3  a very real sense, the Independence Community Bank

          4  Building would fill that bill.

          5                 No bank today wants to use a huge

          6  Greek-style office. It's too expensive. This is not

          7  that application. The developer freely admits to we

          8  talk about $100,000 of restoration, to what's really

          9  an already restored building, and the whole purpose

         10  of this application is to obtain waivers for a

         11  building to be built next door which is too big, not

         12  harmonious for the neighborhood, and which in

         13  addition to the height limit, in terms of rear yard,

         14  in terms of parking waivers, really sets the whole

         15  zoning ordinance on its head.

         16                 I think Bill is absolutely right,

         17  this would set a very bad precedent for the --

         18  perhaps I'm overstating what you said, but certainly

         19  my view it sets a bad precedent to approve a

         20  violation of 50 foot height. I'm also very troubled

         21  with the rear yard, which will be a considerable

         22  imposition on the people on Pacific Street, and the

         23  parking, of course, is always a problem in our area.

         24  And I hope that we indeed can find spaces in the

         25  court house building. I was not able to. Thank you

                                                            70

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  for your attention.

          3                 MR. BANKOFF: Good morning, Council

          4  Members. Simeon Bankoff, Historic Districts Council.

          5  First I'd like to thank Council Member Bill DeBlasio

          6  for his questioning and examination of this very

          7  important issue. And I agree very much with Council

          8  Member DeBlasio when he talks about this being a

          9  broader precedent that we're talking about than

         10  simply the Cobble Hill Historic District. And for

         11  that reason, I would ask you to reject the 60 foot

         12  height. I also would go a little bit further to say

         13  I think the rear yard addition is just a little too

         14  big for this.

         15                 I'd like to just take a few moments

         16  to talk about 74-711 and how it is used and misused

         17  through the Landmarks Commission. Through the last

         18  seven years, my colleagues at the MAS have just done

         19  a study that shows that this particular special

         20  permit has been proposed as many times in the last

         21  seven years as it has in the previous 20. We've seen

         22  65 applications under the special permit since 2000

         23  as opposed to like 60 from 1980 to 2000. This is

         24  obviously going -- people have discovered that this

         25  is a way to do an end run around zoning, to do an

                                                            71

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  end run around what the City and what the City

          3  Council in its wisdom decides to institute proper

          4  levels of the proper development guidelines.

          5                 This is an LH1 district. This is one

          6  of the only two historic districts in the City that

          7  is LH1. That is a maximum height limit, period,

          8  bottom line.

          9                 I'm not going to be barbarian and say

         10  start requesting us to take down everything that's

         11  non-conforming. That would be rude, and probably

         12  illegal. However, we should not allow a violation of

         13  this height limit, which the City Council in its

         14  wisdom adopted not that long ago for this area.

         15                 What happens, because as someone who

         16  has been observing how this works, how the 74-711

         17  process works, is the Landmarks Commission sees an

         18  application and they do their Landmarks Commission

         19  thing, which is looking at it from this point of

         20  view of standards of appropriateness. And in fact,

         21  in this instance they worked a great deal with the

         22  applicant and really reconfigured the building to

         23  make it a much more suitable building for the area.

         24  What they don't do is look at height. They

         25  eventually say, well, this looks appropriate, but
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          2  under statute we're not allowed to look at height.

          3                 Then City Planning looks at the

          4  building and says, well, Landmarks Commission liked

          5  it, you know, aren't they this restricter

          6  restriction, and the fact is LPC doesn't look at

          7  height. City Planning then says, well, Landmarks has

          8  the permit. So, it becomes in a sense almost a

          9  rubber stamp, which is not at all what we're looking

         10  for in a special permit. So, I'd like to thank the

         11  Council for using their oversight capacity in this.

         12  I'd like to thank Council Member Bill DeBlasio, and

         13  I urge you to reject the waiver for the 60 feet.

         14                 MS. STONE: My name is Franklin Stone.

         15  I'm an officer in the Cobble Hill Association and a

         16  former president of the Cobble Hill Association.

         17  I'll try not to repeat what's already been said,

         18  because frankly, it's exactly what I had to say. I

         19  want to thank our City Councilman for seeing the

         20  light for understanding where we were coming from

         21  and I enjoyed our dialogue on this subject and hope

         22  that we can continue that.

         23                 I also urge the City Council to do

         24  something about 74-711 because it does permit owners

         25  in historic districts to get around the zoning laws
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          2  that are more difficult to overcome outside the

          3  historic districts now. And I believe that this

          4  application is a case in point. There was virtually

          5  no public benefit to this new project, the

          6  preservation benefit is a minor, trivial even, I

          7  hate to call it trivial, but it was no more than,

          8  the owner was not pledging to do anything more it

          9  was otherwise obligated to do with respect to the

         10  adjacent bank building, which is keep it in good

         11  shape. It bought it in near pristine condition and

         12  it's great to keep it in near pristine condition.

         13  That really is not the preservation benefit that

         14  74-711 had in mind. There is no affordable housing

         15  in this project, it's not a union construction

         16  project, it was a very dangerous precedent. And I

         17  can give an example based on my own house which is

         18  in serious need of a facade renovation, and I can

         19  see owners like in the situation that I'm in going

         20  to Landmarks and saying I'll agree to redo my

         21  facade, give me an extra story on my house, I put a

         22  nice mansad roof (phonetic) on the top, Landmarks

         23  will say, great, this looks fine, it's in keeping

         24  with the historic district, we don't deal with

         25  height, it goes to City Planning, they point back,
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          2  as Simeon said, to the Landmarks' approval and it

          3  goes through. And our real concern about this with

          4  the height limit was the ripple effect through our

          5  community.

          6                 I'll have to say that commercially

          7  profitable projects have been created in both Cobble

          8  Hill and Brooklyn Heights on a far smaller footprint

          9  than is allowed here.

         10                 We do not think the developer should

         11  get seven variances, we actually think that one

         12  would be right. I would ask for the height for the

         13  parking guarantee and the rear yard as the three

         14  things, the rear yard requirement is embodied three

         15  places in the law in New York City. It's designed to

         16  promote the health and welfare of residents, both

         17  residents in the new building to be constructed and

         18  in the old building, and it seems to me that that is

         19  something that I would also ask for you to not give

         20  this developer still even with quite a number of

         21  variances. But, again, I thank you and ask you that

         22  you keep in mind that 74-711 is something that we'd

         23  like to see modified and we'd also love to see

         24  community involvement in landmarks and City Council

         25  proceedings be made more user-friendly for those of
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          2  us who have other full-time employment to pursue.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          5  Council Member Yassky, you had a question?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I just wanted

          7  to publicly thank my colleague Bill DeBlasio for all

          8  the effort he put in on this. I know this one site

          9  took up an enormous amount of time and effort from

         10  Council Member DeBlasio, but it was well worth it,

         11  because as I understand it, the 50 foot precedent

         12  will be respected. I think that's a very, very

         13  important gain that Council Member DeBlasio has

         14  achieved here, and I just wanted to publicly thank

         15  him. This site of course is not in the district I

         16  represent but right across the street has a great

         17  impact on my constituents and I just want to

         18  publicly thank him.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 The next panel will be a panel in

         22  favor. Ian Kelly from the Atlantic Avenue LDC;

         23  Catherine Cahill from the Brooklyn Philharmonic and

         24  Mike Armstrong from the Sovereign Bank.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Mr.
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          2  Chairman, may I interrupt for one second? Mr.

          3  Chairman? It's okay. Helen Sears is distracting you

          4  once again.

          5                 Mr. Chairman, Council Member Brewer

          6  correctly reminds me that I am holding my own press

          7  conference at 12:00 on an important topic, so if you

          8  will forgive me, I will be leaving a few minutes. I

          9  just wanted to excuse myself. I know we have other

         10  witnesses. Thank you.

         11                 MR. KELLY: Good morning. My name is

         12  Ian Kelly. I am the Board President of the Atlantic

         13  Avenue Local Development Corporation. I am here

         14  today in that capacity to represent the views of the

         15  Board before the Committee. Thank you to the

         16  Committee members and the Chairman.

         17                 The Atlantic Avenue Local Development

         18  Corporation is pleased to submit testimony on behalf

         19  of 2 Trees Management in support of the application

         20  seeking an additional 10 feet over the 50 foot

         21  height limit to facilitate the development of a

         22  six-story mixed-use building on the property located

         23  at 130 Court Street.

         24                 The AA LDC is a not-for-profit

         25  organization committed to the economic development
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          2  of the Atlantic Avenue area from Fourth Avenue to

          3  the waterfront in Brooklyn. The LDC spearheaded the

          4  development of a master plan for Atlantic Avenue,

          5  and among the leading goals of that plan was to

          6  create development opportunities for Atlantic

          7  Avenue. The neighborhood surrounding Atlantic Avenue

          8  is significantly under-served from a retail

          9  perspective. One of our goals is to identify viable

         10  sites and the necessary tools and incentives to

         11  enhance redevelopment and reinvest on the Avenue.

         12  Allowing the additional height of 10 feet in this

         13  one special instance is an example of a realistic

         14  incentive in exchange for a new mixed-use property

         15  with vibrant retail that would enhance the

         16  neighborhood and attract more foot traffic in

         17  addition, a truly important driver in the economic

         18  development of the Avenue district.

         19                 As we have stated for the record in

         20  the past, the LDC supports 2 Trees request to

         21  develop this property in this one instance over the

         22  limit in a limited height district. We feel this

         23  would benefit Atlantic Avenue, if they are to

         24  preserve and maintain the Brooklyn Savings Bank,

         25  which is a great historic building on the same
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          2  corner.

          3                 The LDC is also in favor of the plan

          4  to set back the additional story from the street

          5  line, to ensure the additional floor is not visible

          6  from the street on Atlantic Avenue.

          7                 Attracting a high quality retail

          8  tenant to this intersection would be a tremendous

          9  asset to the neighborhood. 2 Trees is a responsible

         10  developer and a great asset to the community. We

         11  believe the quality of the built work they have

         12  constructed on the Avenue in the past is commendable

         13  and should be encouraged. Their adherence to the

         14  process and procedure in pursuit of development

         15  projects they undertake is a testament to the

         16  commitment to their neighbors and stands in sharp

         17  contrast to certain other developers in Brooklyn and

         18  throughout New York, who have repeatedly scoffed at

         19  the idea of community accountability.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MS. CAHILL: Good morning. I'm

         22  Catherine Cahill, President and CEO of the Brooklyn

         23  Philharmonic, and I'm really here on behalf of 2

         24  Trees from the following perspective: we don't take

         25  a position on the height. In all the technical

                                                            79

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  aspects, that is clearly the purview of this august

          3  group, including, of course, planning and landmarks,

          4  so we really take no position on that, we leave that

          5  to the experts. But what we would like to say is

          6  that we have found 2 Trees to be an incredibly

          7  responsible and professional office due to this

          8  major renovation. So, you might argue why is she

          9  here, but, quite frankly, we recognize how important

         10  they are to the business and developing aspect of

         11  our neighborhood, and they have been very

         12  responsible and committed to supporting the arts and

         13  the Brooklyn Philharmonic through this move. A vital

         14  community is as good as its arts community, in our

         15  judgment, and we just want to endorse their support

         16  to the arts and in this endeavor, hoping you will

         17  resolve all of your technical matters, but we do

         18  want to go on the record saying that they are a

         19  supportive and important community advocate for us

         20  and for the arts community in Brooklyn.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MR. ARMSTRONG: I'm Mike Armstrong.

         23  I'm here representing Perry Mitchell, the President

         24  of Community Banking for Sovereign Bank.

         25                 This building, the subject of the
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          2  discussion today, is actually a second building that

          3  our bank built on this same block. We're proud to

          4  say that both of them still are standing and both of

          5  them will continue to enrich the community over the

          6  years ahead.

          7                 We're supportive of the 2 Trees

          8  proposal and I'd like to give you a little

          9  background about how it came about. South Brooklyn

         10  Savings Bank built the building in 1850 -- I've

         11  forgotten the year myself, but it's in your papers

         12  there. We opened it in 1923 and it was the corporate

         13  home of what became Independence Community Bank. In

         14  1998, Independence became a public company and moved

         15  its headquarters from that location to Montague

         16  Street. The bank continued to be a branch bank but

         17  was inadequate as I think some of the other speakers

         18  have pointed out for use as a bank, and we began to

         19  look at alternatives, both for the bank building

         20  itself, which even though it's not a historic

         21  building, it was a landmarked district and was

         22  governed by rules regarding changes that could be

         23  made. And also looking at the parking lot adjacent

         24  to the bank, which opened up on what's become an

         25  increasingly busy retail oriented, very successful
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          2  commercial street.

          3                 We looked at a number of possible

          4  projects with a number of developers over the years

          5  after 1998. None of them suited either in terms of

          6  the quality of the developer, or the quality of the

          7  project, anything we could support.

          8                 In 2005, however, when we first had

          9  conversation with 2 Trees, we felt that this is both

         10  a developer who does quality things, and who has a

         11  community approach in mind, and we developed with

         12  them the proposal that came to be what was presented

         13  today. That proposal, beginning in 2005, was

         14  submitted to a number of community organizations, we

         15  met privately with a number of organizations and

         16  community advocates for landmarks, for the street,

         17  for the neighborhood, and made significant

         18  modifications over that time.

         19                 So, we felt that the proposal that

         20  became what you see today was something that we

         21  supported. We sold the property to 2 Trees, closed

         22  it about two months ago.

         23                 We're now located on the opposite

         24  corner in brand new space, a modern high-tech office

         25  space, unfortunate it's not a grand banking hall,
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          2  but it's very business and very customer friendly,

          3  and we're proud to be part of the neighborhood, to

          4  stay in the neighborhood, we're also proud to

          5  support the 2 Trees proposal. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now we'll have a

          7  panel in opposition.

          8                 Judy Stanton, Otis Pearsall, and do

          9  you have anybody else to come up with you? Okay.

         10                 MS. STANTON: I'm Judy Stanton, here

         11  from the Brooklyn Heights Association, but I would

         12  like to yield my time to Mr. Pearsall to testify in

         13  full. Thank you.

         14                 MR. PEARSALL: Chairman Avella,

         15  members of the Council, I'm sorry that Councilman

         16  DeBlasio has left, I would have liked to have

         17  expressed my enthusiastic pleasure at his

         18  resolution.

         19                 My name is Otis Pratt Pearsall, and

         20  in 1966, 1967 I led the Brooklyn Heights

         21  Association's successful effort to amend the zoning

         22  resolution to provide for limited height districts

         23  and districts, historic districts previously

         24  designated by the Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         25  and to achieve designation of Brooklyn Heights as
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          2  the first LH1 50 foot limited height district.

          3  Cobble Hill immediately South of Brooklyn Heights,

          4  received its parallel LH 1 designation following its

          5  historic district designation in '69.

          6                 I set forth the history and a lot of

          7  the detailed background on why this all came about

          8  in letters to our Borough President and to Chairman

          9  Tierney, which I have submitted to you for the

         10  record.

         11                 In now opposing before you, a waiver

         12  of the Cobble Hill LH 1 limitation for 134th Street,

         13  I'll endeavor not to duplicate any of that material

         14  that's in those letters, but I would like to add a

         15  few thoughts on the crucial matter of precedent.

         16                 I think maybe I'm in a good position,

         17  having thought about this for 40 years to explain

         18  what that's all about.

         19                 Over the 40-year period, since the

         20  adoption of the LH 1 limitation for the Heights,

         21  it's come to be accepted that in Cobble Hill, as

         22  well as the Heights, new construction exceeding 50

         23  feet is simply not acceptable. There has, in fact,

         24  been in exception. This would be the ground-breaking

         25  first. And if our unbroken history, notwithstanding,
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          2  one developer on some rationale or another is now

          3  allowed a pass, could anyone seriously believe in

          4  this day of development frenzy, that henceforth

          5  every developer in these districts will not seek his

          6  own exception.

          7                 On what basis of subjective

          8  differentiation, of hair-splitting distinctions will

          9  it be possible to deny such exceptions. Now, the dam

         10  will be broken and the LH1 limited height districts,

         11  as a bar in these narrowly limited areas to

         12  discordant development, will be history.

         13                 Now, the LH1 district provides

         14  critical control in three contexts: The first is

         15  assuring the development of vacant land in low-rise

         16  historic districts is consistent in scale with the

         17  overall historic setting.

         18                 This, we are told, is not a worry,

         19  because essentially there is little or no vacant

         20  land available. Well, tell that to the buyers of the

         21  co-op apartments surrounding the finely articulated

         22  modernist sculpture garden adjacent to Lee Harris

         23  Pomeroy's 1974 renovation of the Candy Factory in

         24  the North Heights.

         25                 Unfortunately, while within the
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          2  historic district, the garden fell just outside the

          3  LH1 district and thus was subject only to the LPC's

          4  amorphous appropriateness standard. Not only did

          5  Landmarks condone development of the garden, but

          6  buying the preservation consultant's reference to a

          7  few taller structures in the area, several of the

          8  Commissioners over the two-year course of no fewer

          9  than six hearings, pronounced themselves satisfied

         10  with the "appropriateness of applicant's 9-story

         11  proposal.

         12                 Ignored was the principal that

         13  appropriateness must be judged by reference to the

         14  architecture that provided the rationale for

         15  designation in the first place, not by reference to

         16  those anomalous buildings despite which the

         17  designation occurred. While in this particular case

         18  the LPC ultimately approved a four-story building,

         19  because the garden was just beyond the protection of

         20  the LH1 district, it took us six hard-fought

         21  hearings to get there, with the issue of scale very

         22  much in doubt until the last.

         23                 Have no doubt that the developers can

         24  indeed find considerable vacant land such as 130

         25  Court Street, for which the LH1 limitation, rather
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          2  than the LPC, must prove the decisive safe guard of

          3  compatible scale.

          4                 The second context in which the LH1

          5  district stands as the critical bulwark is the

          6  ubiquitous case of the typical no style 20th century

          7  apartment building which nonetheless generally

          8  conforms to the predominating low-rise scale of the

          9  historic setting. While some of these surely can be

         10  defended as contextually appropriate, many would be

         11  vulnerable to demolition and replacement with new,

         12  out-of-scale architecture under the Landmarks Law's

         13  appropriateness standard were it not for the

         14  disincentive of the overlaying LH1 district

         15  mandating adherence to the historic scale.

         16                 But the third function of the LH1

         17  district is probably, in my opinion, the most

         18  significant, and that is preserving in this age of

         19  the tear-down, the historic fabric and scale of the

         20  many period townhouses that due to unsympathetic

         21  alterations over the years might be characterized as

         22  stripped or skinned.

         23                 Indeed, relatively few low-rise 19th

         24  century structures will have escaped the marks of

         25  time and use, which in fact often enrich a
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          2  district's patina.

          3                 A skinned brownstone, for example,

          4  will still contribute in many ways, materials, age,

          5  window alignment, cornice or roofline, height,

          6  scale, et cetera, and, of course, in today's world

          7  there is always the real potential for reskinning.

          8                 Yet, when contrasted with a taller,

          9  cutting edge proposed replacement by a skilled or

         10  well-known architect, realistically such structures

         11  must be acknowledged as vulnerable under the

         12  appropriateness standard. It would be foolish to

         13  forget the Landmarks Commission's willingness to

         14  sacrifice the Norwegian Club, the more or less

         15  skinned 19th century structure whose proposed

         16  demolition by the Watchtower Society contributed to

         17  the Limited Height Districts amendment in the first

         18  place. Or the townhouse demolition approved for the

         19  proposed Whitney expansion, or for that matter, the

         20  admittedly contributing Purchase Building. Only

         21  rigorous adherence to the LH1 limitation can assure

         22  that Brooklyn Heights and Cobble Hill will prove

         23  free from similar sacrifices over the years in the

         24  name of appropriateness.

         25                 Those who would trifle in this case
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          2  with our unbroken 40-year precedent seem prepared to

          3  play Russian Roulette with the historic architecture

          4  and scale of Brooklyn Heights and Cobble Hill, two

          5  jewels of Brooklyn's famous brownstone crescent. I

          6  certainly am not so prepared, and I respectfully

          7  trust that neither are you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. I

          9  would just sort of ask that the remainder of

         10  speakers on both sides, if they cannot reiterate the

         11  same facts that everybody has heard from before.

         12                 The next speaker.

         13                 MS. RIFKIN: My name is Susan Rifkin,

         14  and I am Governor of the Board of Governors of the

         15  Brooklyn Heights Association. I have a whole

         16  statement which you'll get in writing which I think

         17  I'll skip almost all of it, I'll just make a few

         18  points.

         19                 One is that you've already heard that

         20  this is not about a property located in the Brooklyn

         21  Heights Historic District.

         22                 You might wonder why are we here?

         23  Don't we have enough battles of our own to fight?

         24  And the answer is, yes, we do have enough battles of

         25  our own to fight, but this is one which we feel if
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          2  we are not successful in maintaining the height

          3  limitation in the historic districts, that we'll be

          4  fighting many, many more battles in our own back

          5  yard. So that's why we're here today, to support

          6  Cobble Hill Association and to support Councilman

          7  Bill DeBlasio on the issue of the height limitation.

          8                 I'm not going to go through any of

          9  the reasons why we think it would be wise to

         10  disapprove the request on the height limitation. I

         11  think Otis Pearsall, who, you know, is just a saint

         12  of the historic preservation movement, has done a

         13  much better job, and I encourage you all and your

         14  staffs to read his statement because I think it

         15  makes our case very well.

         16                 The Brooklyn Heights Association has

         17  played a leading role in the establishment of the

         18  LH1 district and we just frankly don't see why you

         19  would make an exception for this particular project.

         20  Again, I'm not going to go through the reasons. I

         21  think that you've heard enough and Otis's testimony

         22  will explain all of that in greater detail, but we

         23  just want to reiterate that this is a threshold

         24  issue for us. This is not about the arts. This is

         25  not about whether 2 Trees is a supporter of the
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          2  arts, this is not about whether 2 Trees is a good

          3  landlord, or has been a wonderful developer in

          4  sections of Brooklyn; this is about whether or not

          5  we're going to preserve -- for us it's about

          6  preserving the height limitation which has protected

          7  our district and other districts in the City for 38

          8  years, and what we feel should be maintained as

          9  inviolate.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 MS. KONHEIM: I'm Carolyn Konheim and

         12  I'm here on my own behalf because I represent the

         13  most affected property by this. The photograph

         14  that's attached to the statement that was delivered

         15  to you illustrates why this was such an important

         16  protection, the 50 foot limit.

         17                 If you look at it, you will see that

         18  if the building is built to the 60 foot limit, there

         19  will be absolutely not one little piece of sky that

         20  will be visible from our second and third floor

         21  greenhouses.

         22                 The idea of height and scale also has

         23  to do with light and view of the sky, and this is

         24  the kind of guarantee that one thought one was

         25  purchasing when one bought a building in the
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          2  landmark district.

          3                 The New York Times Real Estate

          4  section recently recommended that anyone who wanted

          5  to have a protected view locate at least at the

          6  border, if not within a landmark district, and here

          7  we have exactly something which violated, which

          8  could have violated that.

          9                 So there are many reasons, and in

         10  terms of the precedent, there are a whole street of

         11  buildings right next to, I mean of empty lots right

         12  next to me, four lots that are going to be

         13  developed, and you can be sure that those owners are

         14  looking at this decision very carefully and

         15  sharpening their legal knives if the 60 foot limit

         16  is approved. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We now will do a

         18  panel in favor.

         19                 Now, I have two slips from Downtown

         20  Brooklyn Partnership, but I think only one person is

         21  still here; is that correct?

         22                 MR. CONOSCENTI: Good afternoon. My

         23  name is Tom Conoscenti. I am here on behalf of the

         24  Downtown Brooklyn Partnership. The Downtown Brooklyn

         25  Partnership is a not-for-profit organization created
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          2  to foster the continued growth of the City's third

          3  largest business district. It's core mission is to

          4  enhance the environment for investment in Downtown

          5  Brooklyn and bolster the district's position as a

          6  vibrant business center, residential community,

          7  retail destination and world class cultural hub.

          8                 The proposed project developed by 2

          9  Trees Management is for the development of a

         10  six-story 37 rental building at 194 Atlantic Avenue

         11  with ground floor retail on what is currently a

         12  surface parking lot. The project has already been

         13  approved by the City's Landmark Preservation

         14  Commission and City Planning Commission and will

         15  create approximately 100 construction jobs and bring

         16  much needed quality retail to the neighborhood. The

         17  Downtown Brooklyn Partnership enthusiastically

         18  supports the development of 194 Atlantic Avenue.

         19                 We believe that it serves the needs

         20  of Downtown Brooklyn and realizes the goals of the

         21  City's downtown Brooklyn rezoning plan approved in

         22  2004, which encourages the growth of a dynamic

         23  mixed-use community in the core of downtown

         24  Brooklyn.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you for

          3  being concise.

          4                 I now have two remaining speakers in

          5  opposition. Society for the Architecture of the City

          6  and Jeff Strabone.

          7                 I can't hear you, Ma'am. You have to

          8  come up. Do you want to speak on this item? All

          9  right, would you speak to the Sergeant-At-Arms and

         10  we'll straighten it out.

         11                 MS. GOUGH: Yes. I'm Christabel Gough

         12  from the Society for the Architecture of the City.

         13  And a previous speaker explained why she was here

         14  from Brooklyn Heights. We are based in Manhattan but

         15  we also feel this is an important issue. We oppose

         16  piercing the limited height. We are questioning

         17  whether this was a wise use of 74-711 on the part of

         18  the Landmarks Commission, because from the beginning

         19  the Landmarks Commission has been a supporter of the

         20  height limit but does not enforce it. City Planning

         21  failed to enforce it. We are extremely grateful to

         22  the City Council, especially to Chairman Avella, who

         23  is functioning, doing oversight the way oversight

         24  was meant to be done, and also to Council Member

         25  DeBlasio who listened and made a wonderful decision.
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          2                 I think we learned all of this from

          3  Otis Pearsall, he has spoken about the zoning

          4  issues. They're mentioned in our statement. So,

          5  thank you very much.

          6                 MR. STRABONE: Thank you. Members of

          7  the Council, good afternoon. My name is Jeff

          8  Strabone. I'm a member of Brooklyn's CB 6 and its

          9  Land Use Committee, speaking only on my own behalf

         10  in opposition to the application for 130 Court

         11  Street, and I'll be concise and not reiterate.

         12                 I appreciate Councilman DeBlasio's

         13  leadership in this case, as well as the leadership

         14  of Chairman Avella. I wish that everyone in

         15  government was such a good listener. I was going to

         16  say a lot about the precedent. That point has been

         17  made. Instead I will ask the Council to defer to

         18  unanimous consensus of the community and its

         19  officials. The Community Board voted unanimously

         20  twice against this application. The Borough

         21  President opposed the height aspect of the

         22  application, as does Councilman DeBlasio. But in the

         23  time I have left, I would like to speak about

         24  74-711.

         25                 74-711 is ripe for abuse. The
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          2  applicant has tried to pioneer a legal loophole in

          3  this case. 74-711 provides for use and bulk waivers

          4  in exchange for a maintenance agreement that

          5   "contributes to a preservation purpose." Is that

          6  all it would take to violate the previously

          7  inviolable height limit of the LH1 historic

          8  district? An agreement to do what the law already

          9  requires?

         10                 I note that 74-711 contains no

         11  provision for height exceptions per se. Sanity and

         12  preservation have prevailed this time, thanks to

         13  Councilman DeBlasio's leadership, but both City

         14  Planning and LPC were willing to authorize the

         15  breach of an LH1 historic district. That should not

         16  happen.

         17                 74-711 is ripe for abuse and today's

         18  application represents the kinds of abuse that other

         19  developers will now emulate.

         20                 I urge the members of the Council to

         21  revisit 74-711 and amend it so that it's legitimate

         22  preservation goals cannot be flipped to turn

         23  neighborhood preservation on its head by overturning

         24  the LH1 historic district limits.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          3                 I understand we have one other

          4  speaker in favor. The reason you were not called is

          5  you signed the slip as representing 2 Trees

          6  Management, that's why, which would indicate to us

          7  that you're part of the applicants. You're not.

          8  You're representing yourself.

          9                 MS. SHER: It wasn't made clear to me

         10  when I filled it out.

         11                 I'm just a citizen --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I finish? We

         13  need you to fill out a new slip.

         14                 MS. SHER: I'd be happy to. You know,

         15  this is sort of a civic lesson to me. My name is

         16  Nancy Sher. Maybe you could explain something to me.

         17  I sincerely don't understand. I'm under the

         18  impression that by coming here today and giving

         19  testimony that the Council is maintaining an open

         20  mind and considering this is a debate. But that's

         21  not the only question I have. I have the impression

         22  that it's been decided. So I'm wondering about the

         23  value of my testimony at this point.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, first of

         25  all, you haven't given the value, you haven't given
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          2  your testimony. But I have to tell you that this

          3  issue has been vetted with the Council member,

          4  myself, Council Member Katz quite extensively and

          5  we've all had meetings with the community. So, with

          6  this type of issue we've already known what the

          7  issues were when we got here.

          8                 When situations come up and an issue

          9  is presented that we're not aware of, we obviously

         10  take it into account. But everybody's testimony is

         11  listened to very, very carefully. But we try and

         12  resolve things before we get to this point, as well.

         13                 MS. SHER: Thank you. Well, I guess

         14  I'll press on with my testimony. Thank you.

         15                 My name is Nancy Sher, and I live at

         16  125 Court Street, which is a 2 Trees development. I

         17  live there with my 11-year-old twin daughters. We

         18  moved there when the building opened about two and a

         19  half years ago. Prior to that we owned a

         20  historically landmarked home in Prospect, Lefferts

         21  Manor.

         22                 Basically what I want to say, I have

         23  people say it's not about 2 Trees. You know, I'm not

         24  here to address the technicality of the codes or the

         25  zoning laws, nor the veracity of the commissions,
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          2  both the Landmark and the Zoning Commission. These

          3  are not my areas of expertise. I'm not here to parse

          4  those. I just wanted to say that I think it is about

          5  partnership. I think it is about who you choose to

          6  allow into your community to develop the area. Our

          7  life at 125 Court Street is really lovely. 2 Trees

          8  Management is a very responsible management. I

          9  happen to think it's a beautiful building. And I'm

         10  an ardent advocate of Brooklyn. I cherish the

         11  village atmosphere of Cobble Hill, with its low

         12  building height, and its uncongested sidewalks and

         13  its community affability. The view from my apartment

         14  is exquisite. It's so enchanting. We see church

         15  steeples and water towers, and in the winter time we

         16  see the sun go down the natural horizon.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I sort of

         18  interrupt. Just for my own information, and I'm sure

         19  my colleagues have the same question.

         20                 MS. SHER: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Where do you live

         22  in relation to the development?

         23                 MS. SHER: I live diagonally across

         24  from there.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.
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          2                 MS. SHER: I'm on the seventh floor.

          3  It's directly in my view. And so the reason I'm

          4  telling you about this enchanting vista, I think

          5  it's as important to quality of life in Brooklyn to

          6  have that sweeping vista. I have the privilege of

          7  seeing that. People who do not have the privilege

          8  are not concerned with it. I am.

          9                 The building at 194 Atlantic Avenue

         10  will not in any way obscure that sweeping vista, nor

         11  do I think it really is an issue in terms of seeing

         12  it from the street.

         13                 I'm a trained art historian, and I

         14  happen to think 125 Court House, Court Street, is

         15  one of the handsomest new large buildings in the

         16  area or any adjacent neighborhood.

         17                 In addition, 2 Trees other local

         18  developments are seemlessly integrated into the

         19  local landscape and demonstrate a sensibility that I

         20  feel is in concert with the residents who are

         21  understandably concerned with maintaining the

         22  integrity of their neighborhood while embracing the

         23  inevitability of change.

         24                 As I watched the numerous residential

         25  projects current under construction in despair at
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          2  their incongruity with the scale and historic nature

          3  of Brooklyn, I frankly think that 2 Trees should be

          4  the model, a sensitive, aesthetic and community

          5  friendly development. And I really appreciate the

          6  opportunity to speak before you.

          7                 And I'd like to say that I don't

          8  think I'm a singular voice. I think you would find

          9  my voice echoed throughout the resident base at the

         10  Court House apartment. It's just that we're all

         11  aware that when you're really passionate about

         12  something, you know, you turn out for it. So here I

         13  am. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         15                 We still have one other item to go by

         16  the Council member has asked on that item to lay the

         17  vote over. What we will do is take a vote now on all

         18  the items that we have heard thus far, and then we

         19  will go into the last hearing of the day.

         20                 Just to reiterate, Bouley Bakery,

         21  Bedford Stuyvesant South Rezoning and the text

         22  amendment, Forest Hills South Rezoning, 45 Summit

         23  Street rezoning modification, Jamaica Plan Follow-Up

         24  Corrective Action, and 130th Street, 130th Court

         25  Street, South Brooklyn Savings Bank, with the
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          2  modification that we will disapprove the height

          3  limitation, the height waiver, and send it back to

          4  City Planning and the Landmarks Preservation

          5  Commission.

          6                 Chair recommends approval of those

          7  items with the modification. I will ask on Counsel

          8  to call on Helen Sears first.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I vote aye on

         10  all with the modifications. Thank you.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Rivera.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         17  Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I vote yes.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Gioia.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you. I'd

         22  like to vote yes.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Jackson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Katz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Seabrook.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Vann.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         15  ten in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         16  abstentions. The previous mentioned items pass to

         17  the full Land Use Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would like to

         19  thank the community who fought so very hard on 130

         20  Court Street. I mean, I think your efforts were

         21  certainly heard by Council Member DeBlasio and the

         22  Council, and I think you did a wonderful job, not

         23  only representing your neighborhood, but obviously

         24  making sure that we didn't set a precedent here

         25  today in terms of the height issue. Congratulations

                                                            103

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  to you.

          3                 Now to move on to the last item,

          4  Council Member Brewer has been very patient and the

          5  people from that community as well.

          6                 95 West 95th Street. Land Use No.

          7  572. C070381 ZSM. Application by Columbus 95th

          8  Street, LLC, for amendment of the zoning resolution

          9  to allow an attended public parking garage with the

         10  maximum capacity of 100 spaces.

         11                 I'd like to call up the applicant.

         12                 MR. SILLERMAN: Good afternoon, Chair

         13  Avella, Chair Katz and members of the Committee. My

         14  name is Michael Sillerman of the firm of Kramer

         15  Levin. We are counsel to the applicant, an affiliate

         16  of the Witkoff Group, which is seeking a special

         17  permit pursuant to Section 7452 of the zoning

         18  resolution to allow the conversion of a 49 car

         19  accessory garage to 100 car public parking garage in

         20  the sub-cellar of an existing primarily 33-story

         21  residential building at 95 West 95th Street in

         22  Manhattan, on the east side of Columbus Avenue

         23  between West 95th Street and 96th Street. It's a

         24  split lot. The Columbus Avenue portion for the first

         25  100 feet, C1-9 and the remainder is R9. There is a
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          2  photograph of the existing garage situation that's

          3  shown. Currently the building has two unattended

          4  accessory garages, each with a separate entrance and

          5  capacity of 49 cars each for a total of 98 spaces.

          6  The action before you is requesting a special permit

          7  to allow the accessory garage located in the C1-9

          8  portion of the district to be converted into a 100

          9  car public parking garage, which would have 57

         10  public spaces and 43 accessory spaces. The reason

         11  we're coming forward with this is that the building

         12  is located in a dense residential area of Community

         13  Board 7. The neighborhood currently has a

         14  significant shortage of on- and off-street parking

         15  available to serve the needs of the community. As

         16  the EAS shows, there is a 95.5 percent midday

         17  utilization rate for public parking garages located

         18  within a quarter of a mile of the project with only

         19  approximately 58 off-street parking spaces available

         20  at this time and we're following a precedent that

         21  was done in 2003 within a block of this to take an

         22  unattended garage and convert it to an attended

         23  garage, which allows you to get more spaces into it.

         24                 The net here is, you know, is less

         25  than 60 new spaces. During the approval process when
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          2  we were at the Land Use Committee of the Community

          3  Board, there were a number of Land Use related

          4  issues that were raised about the design and the

          5  operation of the garage by the tenants which we

          6  responded to by designing the garage to make it more

          7  accessible to do the things that they asked us to

          8  do.

          9                 We were pleased that the Borough

         10  President approved this conditionally and that it

         11  was approved at City Planning Commission. We believe

         12  we have met the findings under the special permit in

         13  terms of the land use issues, there have been some

         14  other issues which have been discussed which are not

         15  directly land use related which I would like to ask

         16  the developer Steve Witkoff to address.

         17                 MR. WITKOFF: Thank you. First of all,

         18  I'd like to thank the Chairman and all of the

         19  members for taking the time to listen to me here.

         20  I'm going to be short and brief, but in particular,

         21  I'd like to thank Council Member Gale Brewer and her

         22  office for making her office available to us. There

         23  are issues here, or there have been issues here

         24  between us and the tenants association which we have

         25  assidiously sought to address and we continue to
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          2  assiduously seek to address, because in all of our

          3  business endeavors in the City of New York, we have

          4  always sought to do things consensually, and I would

          5  like to think that we gave a lot of thought to the

          6  conversion of this parking garage and to this

          7  building before we bought it and this application is

          8  on the merits. And whatever the outcome here, we do

          9  want this to be, we do want the tenants to be happy

         10  with ultimately what we intend to do here.

         11                 Among the changes that we have made

         12  in response to the community and the Tenants

         13  Association, we have addressed safety concerns, we

         14  have hired a traffic consultant to address the

         15  congestion issues and I think you'll find in some of

         16  the letters and responses that I've made available

         17  to you, are answers to a lot of the community, the

         18  questions brought up by the community. We have

         19  committed to keep of the additional spaces 32 spaces

         20  available for monthly public parking and probably

         21  more importantly, there are 19 existing vacant

         22  spaces today. This is a post-'74 Mitchell-Lama

         23  building and we have agreed to lease those 19 spaces

         24  to tenants, the first 19 tenants who were on the

         25  waiting list for those parking spaces at $117 a
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          2  month which is what the now existing Mitchell-Lama

          3  tenants in the building pay for those parking

          4  spaces.

          5                 So, we have made that offer to the

          6  tenants association. At the end of the day, while

          7  it's not germane to the land use issues here, when

          8  we first bought this building we went before the

          9  tenants association and a large scale meeting, and

         10  we told them that we were the sort of landlord that

         11  was committed to keeping this property as a

         12  long-term rent stabilized project, and we have made

         13  offers to the tenants association that I think

         14  reflects that which includes absolutely no increases

         15  and no conversion and no increases including no MCI

         16  increases, other than what would be allowed under

         17  the rent stabilization laws.

         18                 So, we would hope that you would

         19  consider this variance to be on the merits for

         20  parking. We think we've dealt with the congestion

         21  issues and, again, I'd like to thank Council Member

         22  Brewer's office to helping to promote real rapport

         23  between the us and the tenants and the community.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member
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          2  Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          4  much. I know the Witkoff organization has been

          5  responsive. I think we've been through the garage

          6  and been to many meetings on the topic. We'll

          7  certainly hear from the residents in a few minutes

          8  as to what some of their concerns are. It's a

          9  complicated issue because the garage is in two

         10  basically -- I don't know if this is unique but in

         11  two zoning zones. And also this is a former

         12  Mitchell-Lama where individuals had long-term

         13  understanding as to what their rights were in terms

         14  of their cars, and there are issues here that are

         15  relevant to the zoning and then, as was stated

         16  earlier, relevant to the traffic, some of which have

         17  been responded to and we've been working them out.

         18                 So, I want to thank you for the work

         19  that's been done and I'm sure that we'll have a

         20  little bit more discussion and it will be voted on

         21  Thursday.

         22                 MR. WITKOFF: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any further

         24  questions from Committee members? Thank you. Seeing

         25  none, we'll move to the public hearing. First I'd

                                                            109

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  like to call on Brian Cook from the Manhattan

          3  Borough President's Office.

          4                 MR. COOK: Good afternoon. My name is

          5  Brian Cook. I'm the Senior Urban Planner for

          6  Manhattan Borough President Scott M. Stringer. I'm

          7  here mainly to explain our recommendation, answer

          8  any questions that you may have.

          9                 Specifically, we reviewed the

         10  application to these specific findings. We did not

         11  find that there was any impact to this street, based

         12  on how the garage was studied in the EIS. To that

         13  end, we ask that the applicant hold 32 spaces as

         14  monthly parking on top of the 43 accessory spaces,

         15  which they did agree to.

         16                 There were other issues raised by the

         17  other community board, and we believe the owner has

         18  met a lot of them, for instance, added a tenant

         19  walkway so people can, they don't have to leave the

         20  garage, they are putting in two stop signal lights.

         21  They are adding an audio and visual warning signal

         22  to warn pedestrians when vehicles are entering. They

         23  agreed to the remaining 19 spaces, which we are very

         24  happy that that offer has finally been made. And the

         25  last issue that we asked for was that the owner set
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          2  up a loading and unloading zone on 95th Street,

          3  which will allow the tenants, ensure that they can

          4  load and unload their luggage without, you know,

          5  having to have any complex, and the owner agreed to

          6  those. So, the Borough President conditionally

          7  issued his approval.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9                 We have six speakers in opposition,

         10  so what I'll do is -- and there are no other

         11  speakers in favor, I will call up two panels at a

         12  time.

         13                 First panel will be David Hershey

         14  Webb.

         15                 MR. HERSHEY-WEBB: Thank you very

         16  much, Chair Avella, Chair Katz, the rest of the

         17  Committee. I am David Hershey-Webb from the firm of

         18  Himmelstein, McConnell, Bribben Donoghue and Joseph,

         19  and we represent the Columbus House Tenants

         20  Association. I want to first thank Council Member

         21  Gale Brewer for meeting with the tenants

         22  association, working closely with us and listening

         23  to my clients' concerns. The Council member's office

         24  has been very helpful in this process. Although some

         25  changes have been made to the application, the
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          2  tenants association still vigorously opposes this

          3  application for a number of reasons. And I had

          4  forwarded all of the Council offices the materials

          5  with the diagrams and photographs on Thursday, and

          6  hopefully you have that material, and if not, I can

          7  get you additional. Thank you, Council Member

          8  Jackson. I can get you additional material if you

          9  need it.

         10                 There are a number of concerns that

         11  we have. Under the current plan there are still

         12  serious issues as to safe pedestrian access within

         13  the garage, and there are some photographs of that

         14  in the materials. We have concerns about back-up of

         15  traffic on 96th Street and traffic congestion in

         16  general. There are concerns about inadequate

         17  ventilation inside the garage. A survey by my TA

         18  members recently of the neighborhood of the several

         19  garages in the immediate vicinity indicates that

         20  most of them have available parking spaces. So, we

         21  questioned the contention that these parking spaces

         22  are needed. The applicant is seeking to add 57

         23  additional public parking spaces. And finally, my TA

         24  members will add some more specifics.

         25                 Finally, the tenants association is
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          2  very much opposed to the valet parking for a couple

          3  of reasons. In order to do valet parking you have to

          4  squeeze the cars into the garages. That's what makes

          5  it possible to add 57 parking spaces. They're going

          6  to put a lot more cars in the same space and they

          7  need to do valet parking to do that. But what that

          8  means for my clients is limits on access to their

          9  vehicles and increased damage to vehicles, and it's

         10  something that the tenants association feels very

         11  strongly about.

         12                 Finally, you heard reference to the

         13  warehouses of spaces. All throughout this process

         14  we've had the applicant has held 19 spaces vacant,

         15  at the same time as he's arguing we need parking

         16  spaces, held 19 spaces vacant in violation of the

         17  current C of O, which requires that those spaces be

         18  given to residents. We're happy that the applicant

         19  has come along at the 11th hour. I got a letter from

         20  them on Friday agreeing to provide those spaces to

         21  residents at the rent-stabilized rates. It's a good

         22  offer. We certainly feel that if this plan were to

         23  be approved, that it's essential that be part, a

         24  condition of the approval, and that prior to

         25  approval that be formalized in leases to the tenants
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          2  that also state this is required service under rent

          3  stabilization at those rates. That's very important.

          4                 Mr. Witkoff made reference to his

          5  good faith and wanting to help the tenants and so

          6  forth and so forth. I just want to correct the

          7  record briefly on one issue. It's really a

          8  subsidiary issue. The owner did make an offer

          9  regarding rent increases, apartment rent increases.

         10  That offer was made after the governor stated change

         11  to DHCR policy, such that the owner is probably not

         12  entitled to those increases anyway. So, that's great

         13  they've offered no rent increases when they're

         14  probably not entitled to them. I know they have some

         15  other offers and I know they're made in good faith,

         16  and we'll certainly consider them but they have to

         17  be seen in overall context as well.

         18                 And one last final thing. The

         19  applicant didn't meet with the tenant association

         20  until the community board unanimously opposed the

         21  proposal. So, I'm glad they're finally coming to the

         22  table, but it would have made sense to sit down with

         23  us beforehand, and we probably could have worked

         24  more things out. We're strongly opposed to the

         25  application and we appreciate your consideration.
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          2  I'll turn it over to my TA members.

          3                 MR. VICTORINE: Hi. Thank you for your

          4  time. My name is Jim Victorine. How is that? My name

          5  is Jim Victorine. I'm a member of the Tenants

          6  Association. I do have a series of issues that we

          7  still think need to be addressed, based on the plans

          8  that we've seen which we feel are inadequate or

          9  problematic at best.

         10                 There is also the community issue. I

         11  know that it was mentioned about a need for the

         12  parking, but I did a survey myself this weekend of

         13  the neighborhood basically from Central Park West to

         14  West End Avenue at 90th Street to 97th Street. The

         15  reason I cut it off at 97th is above 97th is

         16  primarily ParkWest Village and I'm sure you all know

         17  a good section of that now is being converted as a

         18  new construction site for new buildings going up.

         19                 I'm also going to assume that they're

         20  going to have a lot of parking availability placed

         21  by the nature of how deep they're digging.

         22                 What I discovered is in that area

         23  there are a total of 15 public access garages and of

         24  them eight indicated that they presently have spaces

         25  available on a monthly basis. Obviously on a daily
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          2  basis it's a daily concern and it's whoever gets

          3  there, but there clearly is more than enough

          4  parking.

          5                 Also, 96th Street is unique in

          6  Manhattan in that it is the only major cross street

          7  in Manhattan that connects both the West Side

          8  Highway an the FDR Drive directly. If in fact the

          9  Mayor's suggested plan for congestion parking goes

         10  through, and you're shaking your head no, but if it

         11  were to go through, I think it would have an impact

         12  in the neighborhood drawing more people in to try to

         13  park. And my concern is that at least the issue

         14  should be tabled until there is, you know, more of a

         15  decision in terms of the direction of what's going

         16  to happen, if, in fact, it's going to be congestion

         17  parking or how the whole issue is going to be dealt

         18  with.

         19                 The more technical issues that we're

         20  concerned with is potentially inadequate

         21  ventilation, inadequate and unsafe pedestrian access

         22  to the garage and building.

         23                 The interference with traffic on 96th

         24  Street, because of the way the system is being set

         25  up, and interference with the building system pipes,
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          2  including sprinklers, do the installation of the

          3  emergency roll-down doors.

          4                 In terms of the ventilation, based on

          5  the drawings, and the drawings are incomplete

          6  because if you look at the drawings, they really

          7  don't show completely how the accessory garage is

          8  going to be set up, but the present fan room and

          9  vents in what will primarily be the public garage,

         10  our concern is will there be enough ventilation for

         11  carbon monoxide with the increase in cars, and the

         12  fact that there will be workers down in those areas

         13  that are going to be there potentially on eight-hour

         14  shifts, so they're going to be breathing down there,

         15  the ventilation system as it presently exists is

         16  really not set up for that kind of volume.

         17                 When you get to what's designated for

         18  the accessory garage, if you look carefully at the

         19  drawings, and if you look at where the present fan

         20  room is located and where the present vent is

         21  located, that's where they had indicated that their

         22  elevator, their vehicle elevator is going to go. So,

         23  there is no indication of where there is going to be

         24  any ventilation at all in the accessory garage.

         25                 From there, in terms of the reservoir
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          2  spaces, there are no reservoir spaces indicated at

          3  all in the accessory garage itself, so my concern,

          4  in terms of traffic, is in terms of going in and out

          5  since it's attended parking, where are tenants going

          6  to line their cars up if they're waiting to get in.

          7  They'll have to line up on 96th Street, which of

          8  course will create potential traffic jams.

          9                 They did indicate that for the public

         10  parking, the reservoir spaces, but I'm also

         11  concerned with the fact that it's a very narrow

         12  entrance, and I don't know if it's required, but I

         13  see no indication in that zone area for pedestrians,

         14  otherwise people coming to pick their cars up or

         15  drop them off, it's a very narrow area, and I think

         16  it's a safety issue there.

         17                 Finally, in terms of access,

         18  pedestrian access, they did indicate a walkway to

         19  the accessory garage for the tenants in the

         20  building. Unfortunately, there is a cutoff. There is

         21  no indication where the tenants will walk in the

         22  actual accessory garage, and then when you get to

         23  the entranceway for the tenants to access within the

         24  building, the area narrows to what's barely a

         25  three-foot wide zone for tenants to move in and out.
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          2                 They're also, according to their

          3  drawings, removing the one -- of the three present

          4  entrances for the tenants within the building to

          5  access the elevator and the stairwell in the

          6  building, they're removing one. That's the one

          7  entranceway which has the easiest access because

          8  there are only two steps. One remaining access that

          9  they're leaving for the tenants has a very, very

         10  steep stairway, and we do have a number of elderly

         11  tenants in the building who drive, I believe our

         12  co-chair will speak to the fact that there is also

         13  one tenant that requires a wheelchair and there will

         14  be no access for that tenant.

         15                 Also, I don't know, I appreciate the

         16  offer of the parking with loading and unloading

         17  zones on 95th Street. I think Council Member Brewer

         18  may want to speak to that. I don't know if she'll be

         19  happy about that parking being taken away from the

         20  street. There is presently a hydrant there and we do

         21  get a lot of double and illegal parking already. My

         22  assumption is if that space is made available, it's

         23  going to be occupied anyway by people just going in

         24  and using it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If I may
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          2  interrupt for one second, I'd just like to ask

          3  Counsel to call on Council Member McMahon for his

          4  votes?

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  McMahon.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          9  at 11 in the affirmative, none in the negative.

         10                 MR. HENDERSON: Yes, hi. I'm Woody

         11  Henderson, I'm the Co-chair of the Columbus House

         12  Tenants Association's executive board. I think Jim

         13  has spoken very eloquently to the technical issues,

         14  but one of the things that the tenants' 249

         15  apartments, one of the things that the tenants in

         16  our building and our community, we're not just

         17  concerned about this building, are concerned with,

         18  one of the things is the impact, the social impact.

         19  Everybody is talking here about the technical

         20  impact. These things are very important. The City

         21  has gotten very involved on technical issues trying

         22  to do things based on the development.

         23                 The City looks great, things are

         24  going up, there is tremendous development going on

         25  in our community right now where it's over-packed.
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          2                 We have some tenants, most tenants

          3  who have access to the garage now, have a real

          4  problem with someone else taking access to their

          5  car, going in and out of their car, they're not

          6  being able to wake up at 2:00 in the morning if they

          7  have a meeting or something to get to to go down.

          8  They're concerned that when it's going to be

          9  attended parking, that those people in our building

         10  who don't have a surplus of money, to support the

         11  tipping process, when they come down to get their

         12  cars. The way it is set up now is that they'll have

         13  to call down, make arrangements for someone else to

         14  pick up their car, and once that arrangement is

         15  made, of course if they don't tip these people,

         16  don't grease the palm, so-to-speak, they might not

         17  get the service they want and they could have to

         18  wait.

         19                 We have a very long-term tenant who

         20  is a paraplegic, she is wheelchair bound, she has a

         21  special-made van that has no seat which can't be

         22  driven by the attendants in the garage. Her

         23  wheelchair has to be wheeled up into -- there's a

         24  ramp made to get this wheelchair into the car, and

         25  it's got a particular parking space. Everybody else
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          2  is set aside so that he parking space, she can come

          3  right in. The way the arrangements are made now,

          4  that will have to be removed. That won't be there.

          5                 We're primarily concerned about the

          6  impact on the community. With the number of

          7  available spots, monthly parking, as well as daily

          8  parking in our community, we don't feel that at this

          9  time it's necessary.

         10                 If it is going to be granted, as has

         11  been indicated, there is some that want it to

         12  happen. We would like to make certain that those

         13  tenants, the tenants, not the new parkers but the --

         14  I'm sorry, not the tenants -- yes, the tenants,

         15  could have access to their cars, park their own cars

         16  at their own leisure, whenever they want to come

         17  down. If we can do that, we might be able to work

         18  something out. But we don't want the attendants

         19  having access constantly to the cars because of the

         20  damage that's going to be done.

         21                 It's not much for me to say. A lot of

         22  this I'm going to let go because I think the

         23  attorney, David Hershey-Webb and Jim have covered a

         24  lot of it, and we have other speakers who are still

         25  here that are going to deal with some of the social
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          2  issues.

          3                 We would really like for you to

          4  reconsider, when the community board that knows the

          5  community voted unanimously to abandon it. There has

          6  not been arrangements made that we feel address the

          7  issues that negatively impact those of us who are

          8  tenants and the other community members.

          9                 To take two parking spaces away from

         10  the rest of the community and those in the building

         11  who can't afford to pay the parking, to give to

         12  those of us who they are taking our parking

         13  privileges from, doesn't seem like something that's

         14  really decent and fair to the community. Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Jim, just

         16  quickly, first of all, thank you for waiting. I know

         17  you've been here all day. I know. Believe me, I know

         18  every last one. This is the question: When there was

         19  a discussion, I know that you met with the owner

         20  regarding the ability to have an up or down gate so

         21  that those who were in the -- I call it residential

         22  parking, so we're clear.

         23                 MR. VICTORINE: The emergency

         24  roll-down doors.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Exactly. How
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          2  do you think that works because one of the questions

          3  I had when I toured the garage with you for numerous

          4  hours is that there is that gate. But in relation to

          5  the gate and the tenant parking, where is the access

          6  into the building? How do you see those three

          7  working or not?

          8                 MR. VICTORINE: Well, what's happening

          9  is, my understanding is that the emergency roll-down

         10  doors are what they are, they're for emergencies

         11  only. And this was an adjustment that the owner made

         12  after the initial plans because they have to

         13  separate the two areas. If there is a situation

         14  where one of their vehicle elevators breaks down, it

         15  creates an opportunity for a secondary entrance and

         16  exit by rolling the doors up.

         17                 There is an issue, though, on one of

         18  the levels because there isn't a secondary entrance.

         19  Of course, if there was a breakdown or a fire, I

         20  don't know how easily those doors would open or

         21  close.

         22                 There is also an issue of the

         23  installation because right now there is a tremendous

         24  amount of system piping, including sprinkler systems

         25  that it's not clear how the doors will be installed
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          2  without interfering or with those pipes.

          3                 Again, with the entrances, based on

          4  the way they've indicated, there is only going to

          5  be, of the three present entrances for tenants into

          6  the building, there will only be one remaining, and

          7  as I pointed out, the one remaining entrance has an

          8  extremely steep stairway, whereas the one entrance

          9  that they are indicating they are completely

         10  removing is the sole entrance, it's two steps, which

         11  of course is much easier for tenants.

         12                 Also, the way it's constructed now,

         13  tenants can pull up to that entrance if need be to

         14  load and unload and then move their cars to the

         15  appropriate area.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         20                 Next panel Donald Williams, Dr. Bragg

         21  and Norman Appelbaum.

         22                 AUDIENCE PARTICIPANT: Dr. Bragg had

         23  to leave to go to another meeting, so...

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         25                 MR. APPELBAUM: Hi. Is it on?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

          3                 MR. APPELBAUM: My name is Norm

          4  Appelbaum. I want to thank you all for allowing me

          5  to speak. I've lived in the building since 1975.

          6  I've rented that same space for the 32 years. I

          7  drive approximately 40,000 miles a year. I'm always

          8  in and out of the garage. Last four or five years

          9  the traffic on 96th Street, pedestrian traffic on

         10  96th Street has increased enormously. A lot of

         11  people walking back and forth from Seventh Avenue to

         12  the Eighth Avenue Subway. A lot of children going to

         13  school in the morning. Sometimes I'm sitting there

         14  waiting two to three minutes to get out of the

         15  garage. There is a lot of bus traffic now. There

         16  seem to be a lot more cross-town traffic, I'm

         17  waiting for those. A lot of cars seem to be

         18  double-parked on 96th Street. To get around them,

         19  people backing up. Usually I'm going to the West

         20  Side Highway, I gotta cross over. It takes two to

         21  three minutes at times. It doesn't seem like a long

         22  time but when you're sitting in your car waiting and

         23  all of these people, you're trying to inch out, it's

         24  not an easy situation right now. The public parking

         25  garage will make it worse, with just the one
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          2  entrance. Like I said, I'm in and out all the time.

          3  I've rented this space for 32 years, I don't see how

          4  taking this space away from me and giving it to the

          5  developer so he can put my car in an elevator and

          6  bring it upstairs to get around the zoning issue

          7  helps the community. All it does is brings more cars

          8  into our residential community, which is under

          9  attack right now. There are so many things going up

         10  on 97th Street. There's going to be two-

         11  three-hundred spaces in the next year or so,

         12  bringing in more cars into this community, and it

         13  doesn't seem like a viable plan to me, to build an

         14  elevator, to put my car into an elevator to bring it

         15  up, and I've got to call down and when I come down,

         16  waiting for my car, I might have a meeting to go to,

         17  someone's hand is out, I have to hand them some

         18  money to do this for me, when now I just walk in,

         19  get in my car and I drive out.

         20                 I don't want to be redundant with all

         21  the other technical issues and such. This is what I

         22  have to say about the matter, I thought I would pass

         23  it on.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. WILLIAMS: Good afternoon,
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          2  Chairperson, Committee members. I've lived in the

          3  building -- my name is Donald Williams, first of

          4  all. I've lived in the building since 1970 and those

          5  37 years represent more than half of my life. And as

          6  a result, I'm very concerned with what happens in

          7  the community, I'm very concerned with what happens

          8  in my building, and I also have a pretty good

          9  assessment of traffic conditions in the neighborhood

         10  and other issues in the neighborhood.

         11                 I am not going to repeat what's been

         12  already said regarding traffic problems and so

         13  forth. But what I would like to do at this

         14  particular time is something a little unusual. What

         15  I would like to do at this time is to propose to

         16  alternative to meet the same objectives of profit

         17  that the management is seeking, and which is

         18  understandable, and at the same time will satisfy

         19  the concerns of the tenants.

         20                 These two alternatives are as

         21  follows: Number one, we currently have a sitting

         22  area above the garage. It's on the roof of the

         23  garage. And what I'm proposing is, number one, is

         24  the construction of a multi-level parking concern

         25  above the garage. Above, not below but above the
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          2  garage.

          3                 Now, I realize this is dependent upon

          4  the ability to reinforce this structure and so forth

          5  to support this, but I made a visual assessment.

          6  This is not a measured assessment but a visual

          7  assessment, and based on my visual assessment, I

          8  estimate that they could put a minimum of 20 cars

          9  per level on a multi-level garage. Construction

         10  above the roof of the garage, and they could meet or

         11  exceed their objectives of increasing parking by 100

         12  spaces or more.

         13                 On 95th Street, we have a walkway

         14  ramp to this area. That ramp could be very easily

         15  converted to a driveway ramp that would allow cars

         16  to access this garage by way of 95th Street, and by

         17  having cars entering by way of 95th Street, it

         18  eliminates the 96th Street traffic nightmare that

         19  everybody has been talking about.

         20                 That is something that could be done

         21  involving an elevator, that can move cars up to the

         22  different levels, and all of this could be done

         23  without any interference or any change in the

         24  current structure of the private parking that

         25  exists.
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          2                 So, therefore, my alternative, number

          3  one, consists of building a multi-level parking

          4  facility that would be entered by way of 95th Street

          5  and that would not, as I said, afford any kind of

          6  problem, as far as 96th Street is concerned.

          7                 Now, in addition to that, there might

          8  be consideration for converting 95th Street from its

          9  current westbound direction, from Central Park West

         10  to Columbus Avenue, to an eastbound direction which

         11  then would allow cars, not only to enter by way of

         12  95th Street, but also from Columbus Avenue by simply

         13  making a left turn to an eastern direction. And I

         14  think that that would satisfy both parties in terms

         15  of, one, management meeting it's profit objectives;

         16  and, two, the tenants being protected from their

         17  concerns.

         18                 Now, the second alternative is a

         19  little bit more simple; and that is, I'm sure you've

         20  all seen at some point these structures, apparatuses

         21  and the parking lots where they have equipment or

         22  machinery, whereby cars are parked, are driven into

         23  the equipment and then they are brought up and over

         24  and around, and you have multiple parking whereby in

         25  a space that would accommodate three or four cars,
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          2  they then can park ten or 12 or more cars, simply by

          3  this rotating cars in this fashion. And something of

          4  that sort could be planted above the garage, on the

          5  roof of the garage, that would allow you to meet

          6  your objectives also, and that would not involve any

          7  further construction at a level. So, I'm suggesting

          8  that these two alternatives be considered, and I'm

          9  requesting the Committee to direct the management to

         10  explore, if they haven't already done so, to explore

         11  these alternatives to meet their parking needs. And

         12  I think if it was feasible that either one of these

         13  two parking alternatives could be accomplished, that

         14  all parties would be satisfied.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: My first question

         16  is have you shared your suggestion with the other

         17  members of the tenants association?

         18                 MR. WILLIAMS: No, I haven't shared it

         19  with anyone.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Because you

         21  started your conversation saying that you thought

         22  your alternatives would satisfy both sides, but you

         23  haven't reached out to your own side.

         24                 MR. WILLIAMS: Well, I've gotten

         25  feedback with the tenants, I've talked with the

                                                            131

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  tenants. The only, as far as that conversion, the

          3  only consideration would be, a small number of

          4  people who might be concerned that some of the

          5  gardening capacity would have to be eliminated, but

          6  we're talking about a handful of people and I think

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You're going

          9  to mess up Gail Hersh's garden.

         10                 MR. WILLIAMS: Pardon me?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You're going

         12  to mess up Gail Hersh's garden.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I mean, the only

         14  thing I would suggest, before we even would go to

         15  management, and you know, I'm not speaking for

         16  Council Member Brewer at this point, is that you'd

         17  want to have the support of the tenants association.

         18  So, I suggest you go back and have some serious

         19  conversations with them.

         20                 MR. WILLIAMS: I can pretty much

         21  assure you. I can pretty much assure you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The other thing

         23  you mentioned about changing the direction of the

         24  street from one way to the other, that is not within

         25  our power, it's not within the applicant's power.
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          2  That is the Department of Transportation. Even if we

          3  were to request it, I'm not sure that it's even a

          4  likely scenario. It's probably a very unlikely

          5  scenario. But that is something that should have

          6  been suggested way, way earlier in the process.

          7                 And then DOT will not just do one

          8  street. They have to do a number of streets and then

          9  they have to do a pattern, you know, paired streets.

         10  So, while I appreciate the suggestion, I think it's

         11  not likely at all, and again, it's not within the

         12  realm of the applicant or the City Council.

         13                 MR. WILLIAMS: Well, let me add on

         14  that the conversion of the street direction is not

         15  essential. That's just an added on convenience, but

         16  it's not essential to the plan.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         18  Brewer, did you want to say something?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes. First of

         20  all, I want to thank you both for waiting. I know

         21  it's been a long day. Thank you.

         22                 Mr. Appelbaum, when you leave in the

         23  morning and you talked about two to three minutes to

         24  go across traffic, go to the West Side Highway,

         25  obviously going left, going west, under the
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          2  applicants proposal, as you know, there would,

          3  according to the applicant, be the possibility for

          4  sort of a going and coming, some people waiting,

          5  some people going. You'll have some monthlys, you'll

          6  have people like yourself going out every day. It

          7  will depend on what people's travel schedule is. Do

          8  you think there is room in the reserve for people to

          9  be able to wait and then go out? Do you feel that

         10  the applicant's proposal has merit in terms of the

         11  movement of cars?

         12                 MR. APPELBAUM: Coming in and out of

         13  that garage for the last 32 years, in the last five

         14  or six years, I don't see how this whole thing makes

         15  any sense. People trying to get in from going west,

         16  people trying to get in from going east. People

         17  going east, buses, people walking back and forth. He

         18  said they did a traffic study, I don't know who did

         19  this. I mean, I'm there every day. It just doesn't

         20  seem feasible to me at all, and I'm literally in and

         21  out of the garage a lot. Virtually every business

         22  day, Saturdays and Sundays I'm in and out, it's a

         23  lot easier then. But during the week, it's pretty

         24  tough moving in and out of that garage as it stands

         25  with only one entrance and all the cars coming in
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          2  and out of one entrance, one ramp that cannot

          3  support two cars. It only can support one car. So, I

          4  don't know how the people in the building are going

          5  to get in and out, and how people are going to get

          6  in with just one ramp.

          7                 The plan seems a bit convoluted to

          8  me. I mean, I'm not an expert, but going in and out,

          9  it just seems a bit convoluted.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         13                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         14                 MR. APPELBAUM: You're welcome.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see no one else

         16  signed up to speak on this item, I will close the

         17  public hearing. And as I mentioned before, the vote

         18  on this item will be laid over until Thursday

         19  morning. This obviously affords the Council member

         20  and us to review the concerns that were brought to

         21  our attention during the public hearing.

         22                 This meeting of the Zoning and

         23  Franchises Committee is now recessed to Thursday

         24  morning at 9:30.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 1:08 p.m.)
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